
1 | P a g e  
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
MUNICIPAL COMPLEX, EILEEN DONDERO FOLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, PORTSMOUTH, NH  
DATE: MONDAY, MARCH 17, 2025               TIME: 7:00PM 
   
Members of the public also have the option to join the meeting over Zoom, a unique meeting 
ID and password will be provided once you register. To register, click on the link below or 
copy and paste this into your web browser 
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_pGObe9joQLaEm9y1m31dRw 
 
6:00PM – ANTICIPATED NON-PUBLIC SESSIONS ARE BEING HELD IN CONFERENCE ROOM A 
1. REGARDING RSA 91-A:3, II (c) (d) (I)  
 

AGENDA 
 

I. WORK SESSION  
II. PUBLIC DIALOGUE SESSION [when applicable – every other regularly scheduled 

meeting]  
III. CALL TO ORDER [7:00 p.m. or thereafter] 
IV. ROLL CALL    
V. INVOCATION 
VI. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

Portsmouth High School 
Student Government Day Participants 

 
Heather Wheeler & Michelle Wheeler – Portsmouth High School Teachers 

                                                                                            
Sophie Cosgrove & Eli George, Mayor 

Miles Borne & Olivia Crotto, Assistant Mayor 
Jacob Mead, Councilor 
Bailey Trudel, Councilor 

Nathan Delaney, Councilor 
Shaye McGrath, Councilor 
Jackson Hooper, Councilor 

Aadya Raja, Councilor 
Lukas Dmytruk, Councilor 

Chase Simpson & Tatum Hebert, City Manager 
Hannah Williams, City Attorney 

Simon Noel, City Clerk 
 

“When educating the minds of our youth, we must not forget to educate their hearts.” 
Dalai Lama XIV 

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_pGObe9joQLaEm9y1m31dRw


2 | P a g e  
 

VII. ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES – FEBRUARY 18, 2025 (Sample motion – move to accept and 
approve the minutes of the February 18, 2025 City Council meeting) 

 
VIII. RECOGNITIONS AND VOLUNTEER COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

1. Public Art Review Committee (PARC) – 2024 Annual Report 
 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT SESSION (This session shall not exceed 45 minutes) – (participation 

may be in person or via Zoom) 
 
X. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND VOTE ON ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 
 

Third and Final Reading of Ordinances: 
 

A. Third and Final Reading of Ordinance amendment to Chapter 10, Zoning Ordinance, by 
Striking Article 5, Measurement Rules, Section 10.515.14; by Amending Section 
10.515.13; and by Adding new Sections 10.811.6 and 10.811.61, relating to Accessory 
Uses to Permitted Residential Uses of the Ordinance of the City of Portsmouth (Sample 
motion – move to pass third and final of the ordinance as presented)  

 
B. Third and Final Reading of Ordinance amending to Chapter 10 – Zoning Ordinance – 

Zoning Map, Article 4, Zoning District and Use Regulations, Section 10.421 – District 
Location and Boundaries, Section 10.421.10, be amended to remove 185 Orchard Street, 
Tax Map 152, Lot 2-1 from the Historic District Overlay (Sample motion – move to pass 
third and final of the ordinance as presented) 

 
XI. CITY MANAGER’S ITEMS WHICH REQUIRE ACTION 
 

A. CITY MANAGER CONARD 
 

City Manager’s Items Which Require Action: 
 
1. Easement and License for Public Deck Access Located at 99 Bow Street 
 
2. Request for Public Hearing Regarding Fernald Easement Financing 
 
3. Third Extension of Temporary Construction License for EightKph, LLC at 70 Maplewood 

Avenue 
 
4. *Street Naming for Newberry Way 
 
5. 2025 Seacoast Eat Local Farmers’ Market License 
 
6. Amendment to Lease with the Players’ Ring 

  



 

3 | P a g e  
 

XII. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. Request from Ken Schmidt of Eiger Insurance Services to install a Projecting Sign at 28 

Deer Street (Anticipated action – move to approve the aforementioned Projecting 
Sign License as recommended by the Planning & Sustainability Director, and 
further, authorize the City Manager to execute the License Agreement for this 
request) 
 
Planning Director’s Stipulations: 
• The license shall be approved by the Legal Department as to content and 

form; 
• Any removal or relocation of projecting signs, for any reason, shall be done 

at no cost to the City; and 
• Any disturbance of a sidewalk, street or other public infrastructure resulting 

from the installation, relocation or removal of the projecting signs, for any 
reason shall be restored at no cost to the City and shall be subject to review 
and acceptance by the Department of Public Works 

 
B. Request from John & Cari Karonis of Fair Winds Home, LLC to install a Projecting Sign 

at 19 Market Street (Anticipated action – move to approve the aforementioned 
Projecting Sign Licenss as recommended by the Planning & Sustainability 
Director, and further, authorize the City Manager to execute the License Agreement 
for this request) 

 
Planning Director’s Stipulations: 
• The license shall be approved by the Legal Department as to content and 

form; 
• Any removal or relocation of projecting signs, for any reason, shall be done 

at no cost to the City; and 
• Any disturbance of a sidewalk, street or other public infrastructure resulting 

from the installation, relocation or removal of the projecting signs, for any 
reason shall be restored at no cost to the City and shall be subject to review 
and acceptance by the Department of Public Works 
 

C. Letter from Jodie Tsekrekas, Cystic Fibrosis Foundation, requesting permission to hold 
the CF Cycle for Life on Saturday, July 12, 2025 (Anticipated action – move to refer to 
the City Manager with Authority to Act) 
 

D. Letter from Russ Grazier, Portsmouth Music and Arts Center, requesting permission to 
have a small parade from Portsmouth’s African Burying Ground to the Vaughn Mall on 
Friday, April 11, 2025 at Noon as part of Jazz Appreciation Month Celebrations 
(Anticipated action – move to refer to the City Manager with Authority to Act) 

  



 

4 | P a g e  
 

E. Letter from Michelle Wall & Derrick Perreault, Red Bull Distribution Company, requesting 
permission to hold a charitable event “Wings for Life World Run” at Peirce Island on 
Sunday, May 4, 2025 at 7:00 a.m. (Anticipated action – move to refer to the City 
Manager with Authority to Act) 

 
F. Letter from Ken La Valley, AFSP Out of the Darkness, requesting permission to hold the 

Out of the Darkness Walk at Peirce Island on Saturday, September 20, 2025 at 9:00 a.m. 
(Anticipated action – move to refer to the City Manager with Authority to Act) 
 

G. Letter from Curtis Hermann, New Hampshire Sons of the American Revolution, 
requesting permission to hold a ceremony unveiling markers at the gravesites of 5 
Patriots on Saturday, September 13, 2025 (This request reschedules the November 16, 
2024 event previously approved) (Anticipated action – move to refer to the City 
Manager with Authority to Act) 

 
H. Letter from Jonathan Day, Portsmouth Halloween Parade, requesting permission to hold 

the 30th Portsmouth Halloween Parade on Friday, October 31st (Sample motion – move 
to refer to the City Manager with Authority to Act) 
 

XIII. PRESENTATIONS AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Email Correspondence (Sample motion – move to accept and place on file) 
 
B. Request from Chris Adams for a License Agreement at 66 Coakley Road for the purposes 

of installing, maintaining and replacing a fence, and for ordinary yard maintenance 
(Sample motion – move to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a 
revocable license to Chris Adams of City owned property adjacent to 66 Coakley 
Road for the purposes of installing, maintaining and replacing a fence, and for 
ordinary yard maintenance) 

 
XIV. MAYOR McEACHERN 
 

1. Appointments to be Considered: 
• Appointment of Mandela Pruett – Arts & Cultural Commission 
• Reappointment of Kara Anne Rodenhizer – Portsmouth Housing Authority 

2. Resignation 
• Eva Boice – Cemetery Committee 

3. Boards, Commissions and Committees 2024 Attendance Records 
 
  



 

5 | P a g e  
 

XV. CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

A. COUNCILOR COOK 
 
1. *Bird Flu Health Issues (Sample motion – move to request a report back on any 

potential health issues posed by the bird flu in relation to geese or geese droppings 
located on Peirce Island or in Prescott Park) 

 
B. COUNCILOR BAGLEY 
 
1. Parking & Traffic Safety Committee Action Sheet and Minutes of the March 6, 2025 

meeting (Sample motion – move to accept and approve the action sheet and 
minutes of the March 6, 2025 Parking & Traffic Safety Committee meeting) 

 
XVI. APPROVAL OF GRANTS/DONATIONS  
 

A. Acceptance of Donation to support the acquisition and installation of a memorial for Dinah 
Chase Whipple at North Cemetery from Appledore Marine Engineering LLC (The Webs 
Foundation) - $1,000.00 (Sample motion – move to accept the donation as 
presented) 
 

XVII. CITY MANAGER’S INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 

1. *Pease Development Authority Board Meeting Update  
 

XVIII. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS INCLUDING BUSINESS REMAINING UNFINISHED AT 
PREVIOUS MEETING 

 
XIX. ADJOURNMENT [at 10:30 p.m. or earlier] 
 
*Indicates verbal report       
 
 
 
 

KELLI L. BARNABY, MMC/CNHMC 
CITY CLERK 



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
MUNICIPAL COMPLEX         PORTSMOUTH, NH 
DATE: TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18, 2025      TIME: 7:00PM  
 
III. CALL TO ORDER  
 

Mayor McEachern called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
IV. ROLL CALL    
 

PRESENT: Mayor McEachern, Assistant Mayor Kelley, Councilors Tabor, Cook, Denton, 
Blalock, Moreau, Lombardi 

 
ABSENT: Councilor Bagley 
 

V. INVOCATION 
 
Mayor McEachern requested a moment of silence in memory of Vernis Jackson who passed 
away on February 13, 2025. 
 
Assistant Mayor Kelley spoke to the work that Vernis Jackson has done throughout the 
community and that she will continue to follow the mission of Vernis as she takes over as Chair 
of the African Burying Ground Committee. 

 
VI. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   

 
Mayor McEachern led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

 
VII. ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
 

Assistant Mayor Kelley moved to accept and approve the minutes of the January 6, 2025 
City Council meeting. Seconded by Councilor Lombardi and voted. 

 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT SESSION 
 

Roy Helsel asked why the valuation of commercial properties went down and the residential 
properties increased so much. 
 
Esther Kennedy spoke regarding the land use review process for 35 Sherburne Road. She 
expressed her opposition to the Portsmouth Housing Authority not having to pay any monthly 
expenses while going through the land use boards. She inquired what the rent would be for the 
property when it has been developed.  
 
Petra Huda spoke regarding the Sherburne property and that the City Council is here to 
represent the residents on this matter. She expressed frustration that the Housing Authority has 
no design plan for the development or Plan B in place if needed. 
 
Jim Lee said that the city should create a Department of Government Efficiencies to look at City 
Hall and see if there are any efficiencies that could be established. 

  



City Council Meeting 
Tuesday, February 18, 2025 

Page 2 
 

X. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND VOTE ON ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 
 

First Reading of Ordinance: 
 
A. First Reading of Ordinance amending Chapter 1, Administrative Code, Article IV – 

Commissions and Authorities, Section 1.413 – Sustainability Committee 
 
Councilor Denton moved to pass first reading and schedule a public hearing and second 
reading for the March 3, 2025, City Council meeting. Seconded by Councilor Tabor. 
 
Councilor Denton said the ordinance will clean up some of the language and change the number of 
student members which will help the committee meet quorum requirements. He also stated that the 
changes would allow for two chairs of the Committee. 
 
Motion passed. 
 

Public Hearing/Second Reading of Ordinance and Resolution: 
 

B. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance amending Chapter 1, 
Administrative Code, Article XVI – Adoption of Fees by Budget Resolution, Section 1.601 
– Purpose, Section 1.1602 – Procedure, Section 1.1603 – Exclusion, Section 1.1604 – 
Default, of the Ordinances of the City of Portsmouth 

 
Deputy City Attorney McCourt said the Governance Committee has recommended these amendments 
to the ordinance. He stated the first would make it clear that the City Council can update the fee 
schedule any time throughout the year and not just during the budget process. 
 
Mayor McEachern read the legal notice, declared the public hearing open and called for speakers. 
 
Petra Huda said that this is not in compliance with Section 7.10 of the Charter. She asked why 
department heads and the City Manager would have responsibilities for changes. She urged the City 
Council to consider what they are doing when entering into settlement agreements for work force 
housing. She stated not conducting a public hearing regarding this change is circumventing the public 
process. 
 
Esther Kennedy spoke regarding the Fee Committee and its history. She said these changes should 
remain under the control of the Fee Committee. 
 
With no further speakers, Mayor McEachern declared the public hearing closed. 
 
Councilor Cook said all changes were brought forward by our Legal Department, and we are looking at 
fees and not revenues. 
 
Councilor Cook moved to pass second reading and hold third and final reading at the March 3, 
2025, City Council meeting. Seconded by Councilor Blalock and voted. Councilor Denton voted 
opposed. 
  



City Council Meeting 
Tuesday, February 18, 2025 

Page 3 
 

C. PUBLIC HEARING AND ADOPTION of Resolution Authorizing Participation in the Clean 
Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Program of up to Twenty-Five Million One 
Hundred Twenty-Eight Thousand Dollars ($25,128,000.00) for Costs Related to Pease 
Wastewater Treatment Facility Rehabilitation and Rescinding the amount of Twenty 
Million Dollars in Funds Authorized to be Borrowed for the same Purpose 

 
Mayor McEachern read the legal notice, declared the public hearing open and called for speakers. 
 
City Engineer Fiedler said that the Resolution is a good opportunity and in the best interest of the City. 
He stated that the project is regulatory driven and requires infrastructure improvements. He advised 
the City Council that the State came to the City stating that funds were available to us and that this is 
a low interest loan. 
 
Councilor Tabor asked if we are required to spend the entire amount. City Engineer Fiedler said we are 
not. 
 
Councilor Lombardi moved to adopt the Resolution as presented. Seconded by Councilor 
Denton. 
 
Petra Huda said that this is a great opportunity but is concerned with taking on more debt and how that 
will affect us long term. 
 
City Manager Conard said the costs will be brought forward and borrowing for sewer does not affect 
the debt limit. 
 
Esther Kennedy said she would like this to include the Peirce Island Plant. She asked what will happen 
at Pease with Lonza no longer needed use of larger amounts of water. 
 
With no further speakers, Mayor McEachern declared the public hearing closed. 
 
On a unanimous roll call vote 8-0, motion passed. 
 
XI. CITY MANAGER’S ITEMS WHICH REQUIRE ACTION 

 
A. CITY MANAGER CONARD 
 
1. Land Use Review Process for Project at 35 Sherburne Road 

 
City Manager spoke to the content provided in the Council packet regarding this project. 
 
Deputy City Attorney McCourt said this is being brought forward because the zoning ordinance is not 
clear what should be followed, and State law provides loose framework. He explained in detail how 
the process would be handled by the Site Review Technical Advisory Committee and the Planning 
Board with a recommendation back to the City Manager. He said that this process is consistent with 
the City Council vote on the development of the Sherburne Property. 
 



City Council Meeting 
Tuesday, February 18, 2025 

Page 4 
 

Councilor Moreau moved to adopt the process for land use review of the project at City 
property located at 35 Sherburne Road as recommended by the Legal Department. Seconded 
by Assistant Mayor Kelley and voted. 
 
XII. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. Request from Anna Saunders of Port Aesthetics, LLC to install a Projecting Sign at 175 
Market Street Unit 103 (Anticipated action – move to approve the aforementioned 
Projecting Sign Licenses as recommended by the Planning & Sustainability 
Director, and further, authorize the City Manager to execute the License Agreement 
for this request) 

 
Planning Director’s Stipulations: 
• The license shall be approved by the Legal Department as to content and 

form; 
• Any removal or relocation of projecting signs, for any reason, shall be done 

at no cost to the City; and 
• Any disturbance of a sidewalk, street or other public infrastructure resulting 

from the installation, relocation or removal of the projecting signs, for any 
reason shall be restored at no cost to the City and shall be subject to review 
and acceptance by the Department of Public Works 

 
B. Letter from Jenna Raizes, Portsmouth Little League, requesting permission to install 

temporary signage at the Plains and Hislop Fields for the 2025 baseball season 
(Anticipated action – move to refer to the City Manager with Authority to Act) 
 

C. Letter from Heidi Carrington Heath, New Hampshire Outright, requesting permission to 
hold the 11th Portsmouth PRIDE Celebration on Saturday, June 21, 2025 (Anticipated 
action – move to refer to the City Manager with Authority to Act) 

 
D. Letter from Chris Maden, Portsmouth Maritime Folk Festival, requesting the following: 

• Use of space in Prescott Park on Saturday, September 27th, 11:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m., 
and Sunday, September 28th, 1:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

• Use of space in front of North Church 
• Motorcycle Parking Ban in Market Square on Sunday, September 28th during the 

festival performance times 
(Anticipated action – move to refer to the City Manager with Authority to Act) 

 
Councilor Blalock moved to adopt the Consent Agenda. Seconded by Councilor Denton and 
voted. 
  



City Council Meeting 
Tuesday, February 18, 2025 

Page 5 
 

XIII. PRESENTATIONS AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Email Correspondence 
 
Councilor Cook moved to accept and place on file. Seconded by Assistant Mayor Kelley and 
voted. 
 

B. Letter from Craig Welch, Executive Director, Portsmouth Housing Authority, requesting 
the City Council to waive all City permit fees for the Sherburne Property project  

 
Councilor Blalock said he feels that this is a common request. Assistant Mayor Kelley said we have 
waived fees for non-profits in the past. 
 
Councilor Tabor moved to waive the permit fees for the Sherburne Property project as 
requested by the City Council. Seconded by Councilor Denton. 
 
Councilor Tabor said coming in with the lowest cost per unit could help this process more than the 
Court Street project. 
 
Councilor Denton said he would like this vote to be unanimous. 
 
Mayor McEachern agreed with Councilor Blalock and Assistant Mayor Kelley’s comments.  
 
Motion passed. 
 
XV. CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 

A. COUNCILOR BLALOCK 
 
1. Recreation Board Sub-Committee Report on Ice Rink Construction 

 
Councilor Blalock said that a Sub-Committee was created to report on the possibilities of having an 
Ice Rink constructed in the city.  
 
Councilor Blalock moved to suspend the rules in order to bring forward Amy-Mae Court and 
Scott Chaudoin to provide the Sub-Committee Report regarding Ice Rink Construction. 
Seconded by Councilor Denton and voted. 
 
Ms. Court and Mr. Chaudoin spoke to the objective of the Sub-Committee, to look into the work done 
previously and put together an update/summary on an ice rink that can be reviewed by the Recreation 
Board and sent to the City Council. Ms. Court and Mr. Chaudoin both spoke about the four viable 
options that would need further investigation as follows: 
  



City Council Meeting 
Tuesday, February 18, 2025 

Page 6 
 

• The City of Portsmouth could build its own indoor rink, 
• The City of Portsmouth can give land to a sports complex developer. This option would 

require the filling in of wetlands at Community Campus, 
• The City of Portsmouth can give land to a sports complex developer. This option the City 

would partner with the Pease Development Authority and the Air National Guard for the 
creation of a rink, 

• A private developer builds an indoor ice rink 
 
Ms. Court reported that the next steps would be the need to find a 5-acre piece of land to build 1 to 2 
sheets of ice. 
 
Mayor McEachern thanked Ms. Court and Mr. Chaudoin for their work and said that we will continue 
to look at this and it is probably unlikely that the Department of Defense would convert land for this 
project. 
 

B. COUNCILOR BAGLEY 
 
1. Parking & Traffic Safety Committee Action Sheet and Minutes of the February 6, 2025 

meeting 
 
Councilor Cook moved to approve and accept the action sheet and minutes of the February 6, 
2025 Parking & Traffic Safety Committee meeting. Seconded by Councilor Denton. 
 
Councilor Cook reported that the loading zone hours for Penhallow Street will change to 6:00 a.m. to 
3:00 p.m., Mondays through Saturdays and 6:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. on Sundays. She also informed 
the Council that the Committee voted to eliminate a metered parking space at 487 State Street and 
add first two spaces on the south side of State Street west of Middle Street to Zone 1507. She also 
advised the Council that the Committee voted to renew approval of on-street parking and loading 
zone changes for the 2 Russell Street project contingent upon the execution of a Site Review 
Agreement. She stated that the changes are to take effect when parking spaces and loading zones 
are ready for public use and the ordinance will be amended through the annual omnibus. 
 
Motion passed. 
 
XVI. APPROVAL OF GRANTS/DONATIONS 
 

A. Approval of Grant for Cate Street Bridge Replacement Funding Agreement with NHDOT 
 
Assistant Mayor Kelley moved to authorize the City Manager to enter into a grant agreement 
and any future schedule modifications with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation 
to take advantage of State and Federal funding opportunities for the replacement of the Cate 
Street Bridge. Seconded by Councilor Moreau and voted. 



City Council Meeting 
Tuesday, February 18, 2025 

Page 7 
 

XVII. CITY MANAGER’S INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 

1. Dismissal of McIntyre Lawsuit 
 
City Manager Conard reported that last week the City received formal notification that the actions 
relating to the lawsuit between SOBOW and the City has been dismissed. 
 
XVIII. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS INCLUDING BUSINESS REMAINING UNFINISHED AT 

PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
Councilor Taylor provided a brief update on the Housing Committee and said that the neighborhood 
had a lot of interests and emotions on this matter. He said that City Manager Conard decided to have 
the City Council make the decision on the development partner. He said that the Housing Committee 
recommends that the City Manager and City Attorney implement for the next City property the RFP 
process which could be good for the project. He informed the Council that the Housing Committee 
recommended POAH for the next project by an 11-1 vote. 
 
Mayor McEachern urged residents to use the SMART 911 system when there is a snowstorm to 
receive all their information. 
 
City Manager Conard reported that we are at 54% of the snow removal budget and that the recent 
load out of snow cost $50,000.00. 
 
XIX. ADJOURNMENT 
 
At 8:20 p.m., Councilor Moreau moved to adjourn the meeting. Seconded by Assistant Mayor 
Kelley and voted. 
 

 
KELLI L. BARNABY, MMC/CNHMC 
CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Public Art Review Committee (PARC) – 2024 Annual Report

Committee Membership. Chris Dwyer (chair), Nancy Pearson (secretary), Ellen Fineberg,
Ernie Greenslade, Beth Hartnett, Jen Meister, Robin Lurie-Meyerkopf, Lennie Mullaney, Alyssa 
Murphy, Mara Witzling.   City Council Liaison: Kate Cook   City Hall Liaison: Sean Clancy 

Foundational Work. Since its inception in Spring 2023, PARC has been active in establishing
foundational work for the City’s role with public art. The committee reached full membership in 
February 2024 and has met at least once a month since its inception. During the initial phase, PARC 
has undertaken the work of setting a strong foundation for the committee’s work including the 
following: 

The PARC ordinance requires an annual report of proceeding and programs, including the 
following: 

• Potential resources in the Public Art Trust
• Identification of possible municipal capital projects that would benefit from inclusion of

an artist in design, and
• Assessment of the opportunity for public art projects that advance economic

development opportunities.

• Established criteria for review of public art commissions, privately financed art subject to
land use board review, gifts of art to the City, art proposed for public property, use of trust
resources, and temporary art installations. Currently developing guidelines for the new
Public Art and Education Trust (established by Portsmouth 400).

• Combined and updated policies, guidelines, and ordinances to streamline.
• Negotiated a process with the Planning Department to establish the role for PARC review in

land use board reviews.
• Secured a $25k recurring line item in the CIP for the public art trust.
• Developed structure and content for PARC web pages.
• Met with new Arts and Culture Commission to identify potential connections.
• Created an inventory (descriptions and photos) of the 73 public artworks in the City, now

housed on the PARC web page — an expanding, work-in-progress.
• Coordinated with the African Burying Ground Blue Ribbon committee for the rehabilitation

of artworks on the African Burying Ground.



Reviews.  In addition to projects under its control, PARC is also a reviewer of projects proposed
to the City for which we apply the same criteria as for commissions. In all cases, PARC meets with 
the artist and/or proposer to understand the project, deliberates using its criteria, prepares a 
written summary review, and presents the review to the artist, City Council, and/or land use 
boards/City departments.  

• At the request of the City Council, PARC reviewed the Love Locks that had accumulated on
portions of the fence at Prescott Park along the Piscataqua River. While PARC found that
Love Locks did not meet the criteria in the City’s ordinance for public art, we made
suggestions for re-siting the locks.

• PARC reviewed a proposed gift from Carl Austin Hyatt, a large format photograph of the salt
piles, and recommended acceptance. The photograph will be placed in City Hall during
early winter 2025.

• At the request of the City Manager, PARC reviewed a proposed artwork to be placed in
Prescott Park to commemorate Fairy House tours and recommended a series of changes
related to safety and durability. The proposers withdrew the project.

• PARC reviewed two proposed art works for Newberry Way being proposed by developers
for renovated and new construction downtown. PARC recommended approval by the HDC
along with a series of suggestions for strengthening the artworks.

• At the request of the Mayor, PARC reviewed an unsolicited proposal for a Pollinators mural
on City-owned property for the 100-foot wall opposite the Foundry Garage. PARC responded
positively to the concepts but identified a number of reservations associated with the
locale.

• PARC undertook its first percent-for-art commission with the Peirce Island project, engaging
the public in developing themes to shape the project; developing an RFP and a list of
approximately 100 contacts; vetting over 20 proposals; and selecting Spiraling Serenity by
DiBari Associates. The project is slated for installation in Spring 2025.

• PARC is working with a middle school committee to commission artwork (from the percent-
for-art program) which will be installed in late 2025.

• PARC worked in conjunction with Portsmouth400 to plan and oversee Terrence Parker’s Cod
and the Mortal Sea, an installation in the kiosk in Bohenko Gateway Park which was
installed in October 2024.

• PARC has begun dialogue with representatives from the LGBTQ+ community about a public
art project, initiated by the gift of $10,000 from money raised for a PRIDE-themed artwork.

Commissions

Resources in the Public Art Trust. The trust currently includes resources for percent-for-
art commissions: Spiraling Serenity (Peirce Island) $140K obligated; middle school $36K (not yet 
obligated); Hanover garage $64K (not yet obligated). In addition, there is approximately $38K with 
about $12K dedicated to maintenance of public art works. PARC will strive to maintain at least a 
$25K balance in the fund for maintenance. 



Advancing Economic Development. PARC believes that there are a few places that
could benefit by different types of public art to bring greater interest to the spaces, creating 
identification for spaces. Those aspirational locations include:  additional artwork to complete 
Bohenko Gateway Park; the rail trail, especially the main entry way; Langdon Park across from City 
Hall; entrance to Commerce Way. 

of playgrounds, including the school sites and the South Mill Pond playground; Sherburne Housing 
Development; future new garage; CTE facility renovation; and Market Square master plan. 

Future Capital Projects. PARC thinks that several future and potential projects could benefit
by inclusion of an artist in design. Those include: the Mechanic Street pump station; refurbishment 



  
 

 

 
 

 
That Chapter 10, ZONING ORDINANCE, be amended by striking Article 5, Measurement Rules, 
Section 10.515.14; by amending Section 10.515.13; and by adding new Sections 10.811.60 and 
10.811.61, relating to Accessory Uses to Permitted Residential Uses of the Ordinances of the City 
of Portsmouth, all in order to bring the Zoning Ordinance into better alignment with the Building 
Code, and to increase governmental efficiency, to be amended as follows (deletions from existing 
language stricken; additions to existing language bolded; remaining language unchanged from 
existing): 
 
 

Article 5 Dimensional and Intensity Standards 
  

 Section 10.510 General Requirements 
 
 10.515 Measurement Rules 
 

10.515.13 Fences not over 4 feet in height shall be exempt from front yard 
requirements, and fences not over 8 6 feet in height shall be exempt 
from side and rear yard requirements. 

 
10.515.14 A mechanical system (i.e. HVAC, power generator, etc.) that is less 

than 36 inches above the ground level with a mounting pad not 
exceeding 10 square feet shall be exempt from yard requirements, 
but shall be set back at least 10 feet from a property line; and shall 
not be located closer to the street than the front of the principal 
structure.  

 

Article 8 Supplemental Use Standards 
  

 Section 10.810 Residential and Institutional Residence of Care Uses 
 
 10.811 Accessory Uses to Permitted Residential Uses 
 

10.811.60 Any lot containing one or two dwelling units is permitted to construct 
and maintain one-story detached accessory structure used as a tool 
or storage shed, playhouse, treehouse, or similar use per dwelling 
unit on the property, with a square footage not greater than 120 
square feet. Accessory structures permitted by this section shall not 
require any permit, and shall be generally exempt from all provisions 
of this ordinance except Article 10, Environmental Protection 
Standards, Section 10.516.30, Corner Lot Vision Obstruction, and 
Section 10.630 Historic District.  

 
10.811.61 Swings and other playground equipment as well as above-ground 

prefabricated pools and hot tubs are permitted as accessory to single 
and two family dwellings and are generally exempt from all 
provisions of this ordinance except Article 10, Environmental 
Protection Standards and Section 10.516.30, Corner Lot Vision 
Obstruction. 

 



  
 

 

 
 
 
The City Clerk shall properly alphabetize and/or re-number the ordinances as necessary in 
accordance with this amendment. 
 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby deleted. 
 
 This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage. 
 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Deaglan McEachern, Mayor 
 
 
ADOPTED BY COUNCIL: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kelli L. Barnaby, City Clerk 

 



Zoning Amendments  

M E M O R A N D U M  

TO: Karen Conard, City Manager 

CC: Peter Britz, Director of Planning and Sustainability 

FROM: Peter Stith, Planning Manager  

DATE: March 5, 2025 

RE:   Planning Board Recommendation on Zoning Amendments 

At the February 20, 2025 meeting, the Planning Board considered the draft zoning amendments 
referred by the City Council.    
 
The Planning Board voted to recommend removal of Section 10.515.14 relating to setbacks for 
mechanical systems and to not approve the other proposed amendments.  Because of repetitive 
applications to the Board of Adjustment that are routinely approved for mechanical systems 
under Section 10.515.14, the Board agreed that this section should be removed from the 
Ordinance.    
 
The Board felt the current regulations for fences should not be changed.  The current building 
permit exemption for fences is 7 feet and under, therefore an 8-foot fence would require a 
building permit.  The Board felt 8-foot fences in tight neighborhoods could block light and air for 
abutting properties.  The Board discussed the importance of input from abutters through a 
public process if a property owner wanted a taller fence. 
 
The Board’s discussion around new Sections 10.811.60 and .61 included the same concerns 
about abutter input and preservation of light and air that setbacks provide.  The Board discussed 
the importance of including accessory structures in the calculation of building coverage for 
drainage and open space. Setbacks provide buffers between adjacent properties and placing 
sheds on lot lines could create a similar effect of taller fences.  If adopted, adjacent owners could 
place sheds essentially touching, which could create fire hazards currently not present with 
normal setbacks.  In addition, a “playhouse” can easily become a tool shed, workshop or other 
similar structure, which could create an enforcement problem trying to keep track.   
The small lots on most of the City do not fit with this level of permissive building, especially since 
all that is actually required is a quick check-in with staff to determine compliance.  
 
The information below was included in the staff memo for the Planning Board relating to 
existing code sections in the Zoning Ordinance that regulate accessory structures: 
 
Section 10.570 (below) outlines requirements for accessory structures including prohibiting 
them from being located in a front yard or closer to the street than a principal structure.  
Proposed Sections 10.811.60 and 10.811.61 would allow accessory structures to be placed in the 



 2 

front yard and in front of a principal structure.   
 
Section  10.573 provides setback requirements for certain sized accessory structures based on 
square footage and height.  Specifically, Section 10.573.10 requires a 5-foot setback for an 
accessory structure up to 100 square feet and less than 10 feet in height.  If larger than 10 
square feet or taller than 10 feet, the setback is based on the height of the structure or the 
required setback, whichever is less, as outlined in Section 10.573.20.    
 
Section 10.574 requires accessory structures to be included in the building coverage calculation 
for a lot.  The proposed amendments would remove this requirement for an accessory structure 
up to 120 square feet.   
 

 
 
In general, the Planning Department does not regulate swings or playground 
equipment, above ground temporary pools or even tree houses1 and historically would 
consider these to fall under Section 10.811.50 and treat them as structures customarily 
associated with a residential use. Hot tubs have been treated as accessory structures 
and typically adhere to the 5-foot setback requirement under 10.573.10.  
 

 
1 There was a recent instance where a large treehouse was constructed and enforcement action was taken, 

however it was a substantial structure with footings.  The structure was reduced in height and size and 
was allowed to remain.  



 3 

 
Allowing a 120 square foot shed anywhere on a lot without having to abide by setbacks, 
building coverage could create a situation where four properties connect and each lot 
has a 120 square foot shed on the corner of the lot with no space between the 
structures. Alternatively, sheds could be placed in the front yard on the front lot line, 
which would detract from the character of many neighborhoods throughout 
Portsmouth.   
 
 
Planning Board Recommendation:  
Recommend the City Council remove Section 10.515.14 as proposed and to not 
recommend approval of the other proposed amendments.  
 
 
 
 
 









Karen S. Conard 
City Manager 

CITY OF PORTSMOUTH 
Municipal Complex 
1 Junkins Avenue 

Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801 
kconard@portsmouthnh.gov 

(603) 610-7201

Date: March 13, 2025 

To: Honorable Mayor McEachern and City Council Members 

From: Karen S. Conard, City Manager     

Re: City Manager’s Comments on City Council Agenda of March 17, 2025 

X . P u b l i c  H e a r i n g s  a n d  V o t e  o n  O r d i n a n c e s  A n d / o r
R e s o l u t i o n s :

A. Third and Final Reading of Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 10, Zoning Ordinance,
by Striking Article 5, Measurement Rules, Section 10.515.14; by Amending Section
10.515.13; and by Adding New Sections 10.811.6 and 10.811.61, relating to Accessory
Uses to Permitted Residential Uses of the Ordinance of the City of Portsmouth:

Attached please find a memorandum detailing the Planning Board’s consideration of the
proposed ordinance.

I recommend that the City Council move to pass third and final reading of the ordinance as
presented.

B. Third and Final Reading of Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 10 – Zoning Ordinance
– Zoning Map, Article 4, Zoning District and Use Regulations, Section 10.421 – District
Location and Boundaries, Section 10.421.10, be amended to remove 185 Orchard Street, 
Tax Map 152, Lot 2-1 from the Historic District Overlay: 

At the October 7, 2024 City Council meeting, the Council considered a letter from Jessica and 
Scott Rafferty, owners of property located at 185 Orchard Street, Tax Map 152 Lot 2-1 
(“Property”), requesting that the Property be removed from the Historic District, which is an 
overlay district. The Council voted to refer the proposed zoning map amendment to remove 
the “Property” from the Historic District for reports back from both the Planning Board and 
Historic District Commission. 

The “Property” was created recently through a subdivision of 15 Lafayette Road that was 
approved by the Planning Board on July 20, 2023. The original lot had frontage on Lafayette 
Road and Orchard Street and is located in the Historic District. The Historic District along 
Lafayette Road and Middle Street follows parcel boundary lines and includes the parcel 
fronting on those streets as shown in the attached map.  

mailto:kconard@portsmouthnh.gov


CM Comment 3_17_2025 

Page | 2  
 
 

Now that the “Property” has been subdivided, the frontage is located on Orchard Street, where 
no other property falls within the Historic District.  

A zoning map amendment is necessary in order to change overlay by removing the “Property” 
from the Historic District. The existing and proposed change to the Historic District boundary 
is depicted in the attached maps. 

At the October 17, 2024 meeting, the Planning Board voted to recommend the City Council 
remove 185 Orchard Street from the Historic District. 

At the January 8, 2025 meeting, the Historic District Commission voted to recommend removal 
of 185 Orchard Street from the Historic District.   

I recommend that the City Council move to pass third and final reading of the ordinance as 
presented. 

X I .  C i t y  M a n a g e r ’ s  I t e m s  W h i c h  R e q u i r e  A c t i o n :  

1. Easement and License for Public Deck Access Located at 99 Bow Street: 

At its regularly scheduled meeting on March 21, 2024, the Planning Board granted Site Plan 
approval to Martingale LLC (Martingale), permitting the expansion of the existing deck to 
include expanded seating for the business as well as public access to the Piscataqua River. The 
Planning Board conditioned approval on Martingale conveying an easement to the City for 
public access through the building to the public deck, and that public access “run with the 
land.”  

Attached is a Quitclaim Deed of Easement and License for Public Access from Martingale to 
the City which conforms with the Planning Board condition. The deck is over the Piscataqua 
River, and therefore the underlying fee interest is held by the State of New Hampshire. 
Martingale has a permit from the State to construct the deck and therefore can only convey to 
the City a license for public access over the Piscataqua River. Martingale will convey the City 
an easement providing public access, sufficient to meet ADA requirements, through the 
existing building.  The easement and license areas are depicted on the attached easement plan.  

If modifications are ever made to the building, Martingale has the obligation to continue to 
provide public access sufficient to comply with ADA requirements, subject to reasonable 
modifications if agreed to by the City.  

The Legal and Planning Departments have reviewed the attached License and Easement Deed, 
and recommend the City accept this document in its present form.  

I recommend that the City Council authorize the City Manager to accept and approve a 
Quitclaim Deed of Easement and License for Public Access in substantially similar form to the 
Deed from Martingale, LLC contained in the agenda packet. 

 



CM Comment 3_17_2025 

Page | 3  
 
 

2. Request for Public Hearing Regarding Fernald Easement Financing: 

On July 10, 2023, the City Council authorized a supplemental appropriation from the Water 
fund’s unrestricted net position, a grant from the NH Drinking Water and Groundwater Trust 
Fund (NHDWGTF), and a grant from the NHDES Local Source Water Protection Program 
(LSWPP) for the purchase of a conservation easement on the Fernald Property to protect the 
Bellamy Reservoir water quality.  

The easement is on a 44.6-acre parcel abutting the Bellamy Reservoir near the surface water 
intake structure that supplies the Portsmouth water treatment facility. This easement is 
extremely valuable for the protection of the water quality and has support from state, federal, 
and local agencies and organizations. 

In 2024, a grant for $714,000 was awarded for this project from Senator Shaheen’s 
Congressionally Directed Spending funds. This grant along with $739,000 from the 
NHDWGTF, and $25,000 from the LSWPP is anticipated to cover the entire cost of the 
easement. 

Due to the timing of the disbursement of these grant funds and the uncertainty of the 
Congressionally Directed Spending grant, City staff staff recommend obtaining bonding 
authorization up to $1,478,000 from the City Council to borrow for this expenditure, if 
necessary, up to the purchase cost. 

I recommend that the City Council move to schedule a public hearing during the April 7, 2025 
City Council meeting to consider bonding of up to $1,478,000 to allow for the purchase of the 
Fernald Easement prior to or in lieu of the disbursement of grant funds. 

3. Third Extension of Temporary Construction License for EightKPH, LLC at 70 
Maplewood Avenue: 

EightKph, LLC, (“Owner”) is making improvements to property it owns at 70 Maplewood 
Avenue, shown on the City of Portsmouth’s Assessor’s Map as Tax Map 125, Lot 17-3 
(“Property”). The Owner is constructing a 4-story mixed-use building with a penthouse, 
commercial space and 14 residential units. In order to construct the foundation, install conduit 
under the sidewalk and maintain safe buffer zones for the public, the Owner sought a license 
to encumber the sidewalks that abut the Property along Maplewood Avenue and Deer Street. 
The City Council granted the Owner’s license request on December 18, 2023 for 180 days 
(1/11/24 – 7/8/24), the first extension on June 17, 2024 for 150 days (7/9/24 – 12/5/24), and 
the second extension on November 18, 2024 for 117 days (12/6/24 – 4/1/2025).  

 

 

 



CM Comment 3_17_2025 

Page | 4  
 
 

The Owner’s second extension expires on April 1, 2025. The Owner has requested a third 
license extension for 60 days (April 2, 2025 through May 31, 2025) for reasons outlined in the 
Owner’s March 10, 2025 letter included in the packet. The extension is needed in order to 
complete the subsurface work on the sidewalks once the asphalt plants reopen. In addition, the 
freezing temperatures have delayed washing and caulking the brick and completing the 
balcony railings and trim. The License Area is the same as the original request and is depicted 
in the area outlined in the Exhibit attached to the Third License Extension.  

Encumbrances for longer than 30 days are subject to the City Council’s policy entitled 
“License Fee for Encumbrance of City Property.” Under this policy, a daily fee of $0.05 per 
square foot of encumbered City property would be assessed for 1,722 square feet of sidewalk 
for a fee of $86.10 per day x 60 days for a total License Fee of $5,166. 

Not only have the Legal, Planning and Public Works Departments reviewed and approved the 
form of the attached License extension, but it should also be noted that the Owner has actively 
participated in weekly meetings and cooperated with staff and abutting construction projects 
managers throughout the term of the license and all extensions.   

If the City Council agrees to grant the Third License Extension to encumber the sidewalks 
along Maplewood Avenue and Deer Street for property located at 70 Maplewood Avenue, an 
appropriate motion would be: 

I recommend that the City Council move to authorize the City Manager to execute and accept 
the Third License Extension to encumber the sidewalks along Maplewood Avenue and Deer 
Street that abut 70 Maplewood Avenue as requested.  

4. Street Naming for Newberry Way: 

Haven Court in the City of Portsmouth has been transferred to One Market Square, LLC. The 
principal, Mark McNabb, has requested the name of the street from High Street to Fleet Street 
be changed from Haven Court to Newberry Way. The new street name is in acknowledgement 
of the JJ Newberry Department store which existed in the building along this corridor. While 
this is a private street, the City has easements for public access, installation of underground 
utilities, and maintenance of the High Hanover Garage over the entirety of Haven Court from 
Fleet Street to High Street. 



CM Comment 3_17_2025 

Page | 5  
 
 

 

The Department of Public Works has reviewed the request of Newberry Way with the State 
e911 Police Dispatch and Fire Department, and they have no objection to the name. 
Additionally, there are no duplicate names in this zip code. 

I recommend that the City Council move to authorize the use of Newberry Way as the private 
street name for the street between High Street and Fleet Street formerly named Haven Court. 

5. 2025 Seacoast Eat Local Farmers’ Market License: 

Attached for the Council’s consideration is the Seacoast Eat Local (SEL) License Agreement 
with the City for the 2025 Farmers’ Market. This will be the 29th season of the Farmers’ 
Market’s operation in the City, and during that time the Market has become a highly anticipated 
and well-attended annual event for City residents. This year’s Agreement is in substantially 
similar form to the License Agreement from 2024. 

I recommend that the City Council move to authorize the City Manager to execute the License 
Agreement as presented, allowing SEL to operate a Farmers’ Market at the Municipal 
Complex on Saturday mornings from May 3, 2025, through October 25, 2025, and that the 
City Manager is further authorized to negotiate and execute any amendment to the Agreement 
that she deems consistent with its purpose. 

 

 



CM Comment 3_17_2025 

Page | 6  
 
 

6. Amendment to Lease with the Players’ Ring: 

On September 3, 2013 the City Council approved a ten-year lease with the Players’ Ring to 
lease property located at 105 Marcy Street, Portsmouth, New Hampshire (Tax Map 104, Lot 
3) and the building formerly known of as the Heritage Museum (“Property”). On October 28, 
2019, the City Council approved a 5-year Stewardship Agreement with the City, the Players’ 
Ring and the State’s Land and Community Heritage Investment Program (“LCHIP”) in order 
to receive grant money to fund improvements to some historic features of the Heritage 
Museum. The Council also voted to extend the lease term to January 3, 2025 in order to match 
the end date of the LCHIP Agreement. This vote was memorialized in Lease Amendment 1, 
which also permitted the Players’ Ring to sublease to a summer camp by Council vote of June 
15, 2020.  

The existing lease, like many other similar leases of City property to nonprofits, obligates the 
Players’ Ring to pay for and construct certain capital improvements in accordance with a strict 
schedule mutually devised and agreed upon by the City and the Players’ Ring. The capital 
improvements under the existing lease have been completed. The City and the Players’ Ring 
are presently negotiating the scope and nature of the next series of capital improvements that 
will be included in the schedule of a new lease. On December 16, 2024 the City Council 
approved extending the lease term through March 31, 2025 by approving Lease Amendment 
2 to negotiate a new lease and create a new schedule of capital improvements for the 
“Property.”  

The creation of this schedule is complicated due to the challenges associated with adjacent 
properties and infrastructure needs associated with implementation of Prescott Park’s Master 
Plan. The City and the Players’ Ring agree that another three-month extension is needed in 
order to create the schedule of capital improvements and seek Council’s approval of Lease 
Amendment 3 that would extend the term through June 30, 2025. 

I recommend that the City Council move to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and enter 
into Lease Amendment 3 with the Players’ Ring in a form similar to the attached.     

X I I .  C o n s e n t  A g e n d a :  

A. Projecting Sign Application at 28 Deer Street: 

Permission is being sought to install a projecting sign at 28 Deer Street that extends over the 
public right of way, as follows: 

Sign dimensions: 24” x 36”  
Sign area: 6 sq. ft. 

 



CM Comment 3_17_2025 

Page | 7 

The proposed sign complies with zoning requirements. If a license is granted by the City 
Council, no other municipal approvals are needed. Therefore, I recommend approval of a 
revocable municipal license, subject to the following conditions: 

1) The license shall be approved by the Legal Department as to content and form;
2) Any removal or relocation of the sign(s), for any reason, shall be done at no cost to

the City; and
3) Any disturbance of a sidewalk, street or other public infrastructure resulting from the

installation, relocation or removal of the sign(s), for any reason, shall be restored at
no cost to the City and shall be subject to review and acceptance by the Department
of Public Works.

B. Projecting Sign Application at 19 Market Street:

Permission is being sought to install a projecting sign at 19 Market Street that extends over
the public right of way, as follows:

Sign dimensions: 26” x 26”
Sign area: 4.69 sq. ft.

The proposed sign complies with zoning requirements. If a license is granted by the City
Council, no other municipal approvals are needed. Therefore, I recommend approval of a
revocable municipal license, subject to the following conditions:

1) The license shall be approved by the Legal Department as to content and form;
2) Any removal or relocation of the sign(s), for any reason, shall be done at no cost to

the City; and
3) Any disturbance of a sidewalk, street or other public infrastructure resulting from the

installation, relocation or removal of the sign(s), for any reason, shall be restored at
no cost to the City and shall be subject to review and acceptance by the Department
of Public Works.

X V I .  A p p r o v a l  o f  G r a n t s / D o n a t i o n s :  

A. Acceptance of Donation for North Cemetery Memorial - $1,000:

Attached please find a donation form in recognition of a donation from Appledore Marine
Engineering (acting through the Webs Foundation) in the amount of $1,000 to support the
acquisition and installation of a memorial for Dinah Chase Whipple at North Cemetery.

I recommend that the City Council move to approve and accept the donation as presented.



CM Comment 3_17_2025 

Page | 8  
 
 

X V I I .  C i t y  M a n a g e r ’ s  I n f o r m a t i o n a l  I t e m s :  

1. Pease Development Authority Board Meeting Update: 

I will provide a verbal update regarding the Pease Development Authority Board Meeting 
that occurred on March 11th. 



RETURN TO: 
City Attorney 
City of Portsmouth 
1 Junkins Avenue 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

This conveyance is exempt from the NH  
Real Estate Transfer Tax pursuant to 
RSA 78-B:2 I. This transfer is also exempt 
from the LCHIP surcharge pursuant to  
RSA 478:17-g II (a). 

QUITCLAIM DEED OF EASEMENT AND LICENSE FOR PUBLIC ACCESS 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that MARTINGALE, LLC, a 
New Hampshire limited liability company, having an address of 10 Pleasant Street, Suite 
300, Portsmouth, Rockingham County, New Hampshire 03801 (hereinafter the “Grantor”) 
for valuable consideration paid by the City of Portsmouth, New Hampshire, the receipt of 
which is hereby acknowledged by the Grantor, does hereby sell, grant, and convey unto 
the CITY OF PORTSMOUTH,  a municipal corporation with principal business address 
of 1 Junkins Avenue, Portsmouth, Rockingham County,  New Hampshire 03801 
(hereinafter the “City”), with quitclaim covenants, perpetual Easements for Public Access 
to a Public Access Deck (as defined below) located over the Piscataqua River.  

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner of a certain parcel of land situated at 99 Bow 
Street, Portsmouth, Rockingham County, New Hampshire 03801 (Tax Map 106 as Lot 54), 
being land and buildings owned by the Grantor located conveyed to the Grantor by virtue 
of confirmatory quitclaim deed dated October 27, 2017, recorded at the Rockingham 
County Registry of Deeds at Book 5868, Page 2627 (hereinafter the “Premises”); 

WHEREAS, Grantor will construct and install a new deck for the purposes of 
public use and access at the rear of the Premises located over the Piscataqua River, 
including all necessary attachments and fixtures thereto shown as the “public overlook 
deck” on the plans referenced herein (hereinafter the “Public Access Deck”) in accordance 
with the plans and specifications drawn by Ambit Engineering entitled, “Public Access 
Improvements Bow Street Portsmouth, NH, Sheet C2 – NHDES Permit Plan” as amended 
December 20, 2021, and “Martingale Wharf Deck Expansion, Sheets A8 and A9” dated 
April 7, 2022 as drawn by McHenry Architecture, submitted as Site Plan Application LU-
24-21, as approved by the City’s Planning Board on March 21, 2024 (hereinafter the
“Approved Site Plan”);

WHEREAS, Grantor and the City desire to provide permanent public access for 
the use and enjoyment of the Public Access Deck, upon Grantor’s completion of 
construction and installation thereof in strict accordance with the Approved Site Plan, and 
subject to the terms of this agreement; and 



WHEREAS, in connection therewith, Grantor has agreed to grant to the City an 
easement over, across and through its building and over and across the Premises for the 
purpose of providing American with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) compliant access for the 
public to the Public Access Deck, herein including Paragraph 6 below, on the portion of 
the Premises as shown on the Plan (as hereinafter defined) as “Easement #1” containing 
273 square feet (the “Easement Area”), on the plan entitled, “EASEMENT PLAN – 99 
BOW STREET, PORTSMOUTH, NH, Tax Map 106, Lot 54, Prepared for Martingale, 
LLC, Land of: Martingale, LLC”, prepared by James Verra and Associates, dated October 
9, 2024, recorded herewith and incorporated herein as attached Exhibit A (the “Plan”), 
subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
WHEREAS, the Grantor grants to the City a License for the purpose of public 

access over and across the area shown on the Plan as “Easement #2” containing 597 square 
feet the License Area (as hereinafter defined), subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement.  

 
NOW THEREFORE, for consideration of one dollar ($1.00) and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, and for 
the mutual covenants contained herein, the Grantor and the City hereby agree as follows:  
 
1. The Grantor will construct and install the Public Access Deck in strict accordance 

with the Approved Site Plan. Any modification to the Public Access Deck within 
the Easement Area and License Area after completion of construction of the Public 
Access Deck and Premises in accordance with the Approved Site Plan, is subject 
to approval as a Site Plan Amendment, which may be approved by the Planning 
Board or the Planning Director, as defined by the City’s then-current Site Plan 
Regulations. Any modification to the terms and conditions of this easement and 
license agreement, or any modifications to the location of the Easement Area and 
License Area, may only be made by mutual consent of the Parties. If an amendment 
to the location of the Easement and License Area requires a building permit or site-
plan amendment, it shall be made by the mutual assent of the Grantor and Planning 
Board; however, all other amendments to the location shall be made by the mutual 
assent of the Grantor and City Manager, such consent in both cases shall not be 
unreasonable delayed or conditioned.  If either the Planning Board or City Manager 
does not act on a request for amendment to the location within ninety (90) days, it 
shall be deemed approved.  Subsequent amendments to the location or relocation 
of the Easement Area or License Area shall not otherwise alter or amend the terms 
of this agreement. 

 
2. Grantor grants to the City, it successors and assigns, the perpetual, non-exclusive 

right, and easement for the public to cross over and upon the Premises of the 
Grantor for the purposes of use and enjoyment of the Public Access Deck over the 
Piscataqua River through Easement # 1, subject to Paragraph 6 below.  

 
The use and enjoyment of the Public Access Deck shall be limited to temporary use 
by the City and members of the public for viewing, sitting, congregating or 



otherwise accessing the Public Access Deck; however, no permanent use or 
occupancy of the Public Access Deck or Easement # 1 is permitted, as well as no 
fishing, no docking boats, no docking or launching of any Class A boats, no open 
fires, no camping, no playing of music or any other amplified sound systems and 
no overnight stays are permitted on the Public Access Deck or upon the Grantors 
building and Premises. 

 
3. Grantor grants to the City, it successors and assigns, the perpetual, non-exclusive 

right and license for the public to pass through its building, access the elevator, 
hallways, exits and entrances, as may be necessary, to provide accessible access 
through the Premises for the purposes of access to, use and enjoyment of the Public 
Access Deck, (as shown on the Plan over the Piscataqua River) as Easement # 2 
(the “License Area”), subject to Paragraph 6 below.   
 
The use and enjoyment of the right to pass through the building, use of the elevator, 
hallways, exits and entrances of the Premises shall be permitted from 9:00 a.m. to 
9:00 p.m., 365 days per year, 7 days per week to the Easement Area and License 
Area. Upon emergencies, inclement weather, or other similar conditions beyond the 
control of the Grantor (hereinafter an “Emergency”), the Grantor is permitted to 
temporarily restrict access to the Easement Area and License Area and the Public 
Deck Area (hereinafter an “Emergency Closure”). The Grantor shall provide notice 
to the City of any emergency closure as soon as practicable, and shall provide 
prominent postings adjacent to the impacted areas to notify the public of any 
Emergency Closure. The duration of any Emergency Closure to the License Area 
shall be limited, to the extent possible, to the duration of the Emergency.  Neither 
the Grantor nor the City shall cause any temporary or permanent obstructions of 
Easement Area and License Area. 
 

 
 
4. The City and public shall have no right to alter, amend, change, or make 

excavations through, over or above the surface or subsurface of the Easement Area 
or License Area.  
 

5. Grantor reserves the right, and the right to grant others the right, to use the Easement 
Area and License Area (including above the surface, over the surface, and 
subsurface thereof) for any legal purpose whatsoever, and the right to pass over the 
Easement Area and License Area, provided that such use shall not unreasonably 
interfere with the rights granted to the City and public herein.  

 
6. Grantor reserves the right, and the right to grant others the right, to use the surface 

area of the Easement Area and License Area for means of egress and ingress to its 
Premises, cross over the Easement Area, License Area and Public Access Deck to 
access its Premises, the same as the public’s access to abutting roadways, 
walkways, sidewalks, decks, and other similar improvements.  Grantor shall be 
permitted to utilize the Easement Area, License Area and Public Access Deck, upon 



completion of construction in accordance with the Approved Site Plan, subject to 
the terms and conditions, as approved by the City of Portsmouth Planning Board 
on March 21, 2024 and consistent with the use authorized by the New Hampshire 
Department of Environmental Services, Wetlands Bureau Permit #2021-02150, 
approved by the Governor and Council on November 29, 2023. 

 
7. Relocation of Easement Areas:  
 

A. Grantor and Grantee mutually agree to permit the Grantor to alter or amend the 
Buildings and/or the Premises, specifically with respect to the use and access 
of the public deck through Easement #1, if there is any change in use or 
reconstruction that may require temporary or permanent disruption, relocation 
or change in the use of Easement #1, subject to reasonable approval of the 
Planning Board (if it requires a building permit or change in use) or City 
Manager (if no building permit or use is required) and the Grantor. If either the 
Planning Board or City Manager does not act on a request for amendment 
within ninety (90) days, it shall be deemed approved. 

 
B. Grantor and Grantee mutually agree to permit the Grantor to alter, amend, 

relocate, or reconstruct the License Area shown as Easement #2 throughout the 
Building and/or the Premises, in the event of a change in use, tenancy, or change 
in the International Building Codes, zoning ordinances, or laws necessitate such 
an amendment.  If any such amendment requires a building permit or use 
change, said amendment of the relocation shall be mutually agreed between the 
Grantor and Planning Board or Planning Director.  Any other such 
amendment(s) to the License Area, that does not require a building permit or 
change in use shall be mutually agreed between the Grantor and City Manager, 
and shall provide access to the public through and over the License Area shown 
as Easement #2. Therefore, the City shall not unreasonably withhold or delay 
permission for the Grantor to relocate access consistent with this paragraph. If 
either the Planning Board or City Manager does not act on a request for 
amendment within ninety (90) days, it shall be deemed approved. 

 
 

8. Grantor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City against and from all expenses, 
liabilities, obligations, damages, penalties, claims, actions, and costs (including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees) paid in connection with loss of life, bodily injury, 
damage to property or noncompliance with Laws:  

 
(i) caused by the exercise of the Grantor’s rights or obligations 

hereunder by the Grantor or its agents, contractors, or employees, or  
 

(ii) caused by the Grantor’s failure to perform any obligation under this 
Agreement, unless with respect to either subclause (i) or (ii) above, 
such expense, liability, obligation, damage, penalty, claim, action or 
cost is caused by the willful misconduct or negligent act or omission 



of the City or any of its agents, contractors or employees, or invitees 
or by the City’s failure to perform any of its obligations under this 
Agreement.  In no event shall an Grantor be liable hereunder for any 
consequential, punitive, special, or speculative damages.  

 
9. The rights, liabilities, agreements and obligations herein granted and set forth shall 

inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon the respective successors, assigns, 
representatives, transferees and mortgagees of the Grantor and the City, as 
applicable, and upon all other persons claiming by, through or under Grantor or the 
City, respectively.   

 
Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, in no event shall any partner, 
trustee, members of any governing boards, principal, officer, director, shareholder, 
member, manager, equity owner, employee or agent of Grantor or the City incur 
any personal liability for any of the liabilities or obligations of the parties 
hereunder, and no personal judgment shall be sought, levied, or enforced against 
any such party individually.  No holder of a mortgage on the Premises or any 
portion thereof shall have any liability hereunder unless and until it takes title to the 
Premises and such liability shall be strictly limited to such holder’s interest in the 
Premises. 

 
10. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the 

Easement. This Agreement may be amended only in writing, signed by duly 
authorized representatives of the Grantor and City. 

 
11. This Agreement is to become effective when recorded at the Rockingham County 

Registry of Deeds. 
 
12. Whenever, by the terms of this instrument, notices may or are to be given either to 

Grantor or the City, such notices shall be deemed to have been given if in writing 
and either delivered by hand or by United States first class mail, or by certified or 
registered mail (return receipt requested), if intended for the Grantor to: 

 
Martingale LLC 
10 Pleasant Street, Suite 300 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

   ATTN:  Mark A. McNabb, Manager 
 

and if intended for the City to: 
 

City of Portsmouth 
City Hall 
1 Junkins Avenue 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 

ATTN:  Karen Conard, City Manager 
 



or to such other address or addresses as may be specified by any of the parties to 
the other by like notice. 

 
 
 
13. The foregoing grant of easement is made subject to all rights, easements, 

agreements, covenants, restrictions, and other matters of record, if any, as far as the 
same are now in force, applicable, and recorded with the Registry. 

 
14. This Agreement shall be governed in accordance with the laws of the State of New 

Hampshire, without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. The parties hereby 
waive any right to trial by jury in connection with any action or proceeding arising 
hereunder. All actions arising under this Agreement shall be heard by a court of 
competent jurisdiction sitting in Rockingham County, New Hampshire. This 
Agreement may be executed in counterparts. All such counterparts shall be deemed 
to be originals and together shall constitute but one and the same instrument.  

 
  
 
 Signed this ______ day of _______________, 2025. 
 
GRANTOR: 
MARTINGALE, LLC, 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
            Mark A. McNabb, its Manager 
 Duly Authorized 
  
 
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM 
 
 On this___ day of _____, 2025, before me personally appeared the above-named 
Mark A. McNabb, Manager of Martingale, LLC known to me or satisfactorily proven to 
be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged 
the same to be his free act and deed for the purposes contained therein on. 
 
     ______________________________  
                Notary Public / Justice of the Peace 
     Print Name: 

My Commission Expires: 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CITY OF PORTSMOUTH 
 
 
By: _________________________ 
       Karen Conard, City Manager        
       
 
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM 
 
 On this ____day of _______, 2025, before me personally appeared the above-
named Karen Conard, duly authorized, City Manager of the City of Portsmouth, known 
to me or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing 
instrument and acknowledged the same to be her free act and deed for the purposes 
contained therein on behalf of the City of Portsmouth. 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Notary Public / Justice of the Peace 
      Print Name: 
                                                                        My Commission Expires:  
 

  



 
 

EXHIBIT A 





CITY OF PORTSMOUTH 
TWO THOUSAND TWENTY-FIVE 

PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

RESOLUTION #  XX – 2025 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A BOND ISSUE AND/OR NOTES OF THE 
CITY UNDER THE MUNICIPAL FINANCE ACT FOR THE PURCHASE OF A 
CONSERVATION EASEMENT ON THE FERNALD PROPERTY TO PROTECT 
THE BELLAMY RESERVOIR WATER QUALITY NOT TO EXCEED ONE 
MILLION FOUR HUNDRED SEVENTY-EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($1,478,000). 

RESOLVED: 

THAT the sum of up to One Million Four Hundred Seventy-Eight Thousand Dollars 
($1,478,000) is appropriated for the purchase of a conservation easement on the Fernald 
property to protect the Bellamy Reservoir water quality; and 

THAT to meet this appropriation, the City Treasurer, with the approval of the City 
Manager, is authorized to borrow up to One Million Four Hundred Seventy-Eight 
Thousand Dollars ($1,478,000) through the issuance of bonds and/or notes of the City 
under the Municipal Finance Act; and 

THAT such borrowing is to be net of the effect of any funds realized for the same purpose 
by the City from the NH Drinking Water and Groundwater Trust Fund (estimated 
$739,000), the NH Department of Environmental Services Local Source Water Protection 
Program (estimated $25,000), and Congressionally Directed Spending (estimated 
$714,000); and 

THAT the amount of such appropriation funded by the NH Drinking Water and 
Groundwater Trust Fund, the NH Department of Environmental Services Local Source 
Water Protection Program, and Congressionally Directed Spending shall be rescinded from 
this authorization; and 

THAT this Resolution shall take effect upon its passage. 

APPROVED: 

_____________________________ 
DEAGLAN MCEACHERN, MAYOR 

ADOPTED BY CITY COUNCIL 

_________________________________ 
KELLI BARNABY, CMC/CNHMC 
CITY CLERK 



EightKph LLC  
233 Vaughan Street, Unit #301  
Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801 

Date:  March 10, 2025 

To: City of Portsmouth City Council 

Re: 70 Maplewood, Portsmouth, NH, Sidewalk Encumbrance Permit 

Mr. Mayor, City Councilors,  

Thank you for your continued support. We are hereby requesting a 60-day extension of the 
current sidewalk license at 70 Maplewood Ave.  The current sidewalk encumbrance license 
expires on April 1, 2024.  This request would extend the license period from April 2, 2025 to 
May 31, 2025. 

This request is being driven predominately by Winter conditions noting that the sidewalks along 
Maplewood remain frozen and covered with ice despite the warning weather.  We also need the 
asphalt plant open to prep for the sidewalk subsurface work.  Despite a few warm days here and 
there we are still seeing significant below freezing temperatures in the overnight hours. 

Continued use of the sidewalk area will facilitate the use of Boom lifts for washing the brick 
work (when warm enough), caulking the brick control joints as well as the completion of balcony 
railings and trim. This will also allow us to fully complete the Commercial storefront windows 
and doors. 

Several sidewalk improvements in the site plan include street lamps and the expansive 4’ x 50’ 
custom tree grate vaults (three of them) along Maplewood and Deer St.  These cannot be 
completed until the brick façade has been washed and caulked.  Continued use of the sidewalk 
area will allow for the sidewalk to be returned to service 100% complete after this particularly 
snowy and windy Winter season.  

As noted in previous requests, we will advance the work along Maplewood Ave. and Deer St. 
reserving completion of the pocket park behind the building for last. 

We are particularly pleased with the somewhat time-consuming sawtooth brick work on 70 
Maplewood and hope that the building aesthetic meets with your approval. We believe the iron 
railing details yet to come will truly complete the building. 

Thank you all for your consideration, 

Thomas Balon Jr.  
EightKph LLC, Manager 



ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Rectangle

ericeby
Rectangle

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Polygon

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Line

ericeby
Oval

ericeby
Rectangle

ericeby
Rectangle

ericeby
Text Box
VAUGHAN ST.



  

 

THIRD LICENSE EXTENSION AGREEMENT 
 70 MAPLEWOOD AVENUE 

  
 
 

 The City of Portsmouth (hereinafter "City"), a municipal corporation with a 

principal place of business of 1 Junkins Avenue, Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801, 

for good and valuable consideration as set forth herein, hereby grants this Third  

License Extension to EIGHTKPH, LLC (hereinafter “Licensee” or “Owner”) with a 

principal place of business at 233 Vaughan Street, Unit 301, Portsmouth, NH, pursuant 

to the following terms and conditions: 

1. License Area:  The Owner owns the property located in the City of 
Portsmouth, Rockingham County, State of New Hampshire, at 70 
Maplewood Avenue, shown on the City of Portsmouth’s Assessor’s Map 
as Tax Map 125, Lot 17-3 (“Property”). For the Owner’s title to the 
Property, see Rockingham County Registry of Deeds at Book 6348, Page 
2213. 
 
The City authorizes Licensee to temporarily use 1,722 square feet of 
sidewalk that abuts the Property along Maplewood Avenue and Deer 
Street more particularly described and highlighted in yellow in Exhibit A 
attached. 

 
2. Use:  Licensee shall make use of the License Area for the purpose of 

facilitating the Licensee’s construction of a four-story building with 
commercial space, dwelling units and a penthouse. 

 
3. Term:  The License for License Area shall be for approximately 60 days, 

from April 2, 2025 through May 31, 2025. 
 
Licensee may terminate this License prior to the end of the term by 
returning the License Area to safe and effective use by the public prior to 
the expiration of the term of this License. The Licensee shall contact the 
Director of Public Works for a determination that the License Area has 
been returned to safe and effective use. Failure to remove all vehicles, 
barriers, materials and equipment and to return the License Area to the 
City in the manner prescribed under this License at the end of the term 
may result in enforcement action by the City.  

 
4. Notice: Licensee shall provide notice to the City’s Director of Public 

Works when Licensee assumes control and use of the License Area and 
again when it returns the License Area to the City’s control and use. 



 

 2 

 
5. License Fees: The Owner shall pay to the City a License Fees in 

accordance with City Council Policy No. 2018-02 entitled “License Fee for 
Encumbrance of City Property”. The License Fee Policy provides that the 
Owner will be charged a daily fee for the sidewalk encumbered by this 
License of $0.05 per square foot per day.  

 
License Fee Calculation: The total License Fee for the License is 
$0.05 x 1,722 square feet = $86.10 per day x 60 days = $5,166. 
The License Fee shall be paid in full prior to the start of the term of 
the License. 

 
Because it is in the City’s interest that the License Area be returned to the 
public use as soon as possible, if the License Area is returned to the City 
prior to the end of the License Term, the City will refund the Licensee the 
portion of the License Fee paid but not used. 
 

6. Indemnification:  Licensee agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 
City of Portsmouth for any and all property damage, bodily injury or 
personal injury which arises as a result of its utilization of the License 
Area. This obligation survives termination or revocation of this Agreement.  

 
7. Insurance:  At all times the Licensee shall maintain insurance for bodily 

injury and property damage in the amount of at least $1,000,000 per 
occurrence.  Licensee will provide proof of insurance to the City during the 
term of this Agreement and the City will be named as an additional 
insured. 

 
8. Maintenance of Area:  During the term of this Agreement, Licensee shall 

maintain the License Area in a safe, neat and orderly fashion and shall 
take such actions as are necessary to protect the public safety. The 
Licensee shall secure the perimeter of the License Area and take such 
other measures as may be necessary for pedestrian and vehicular safety 
during use of the License Area. This shall include pedestrian signage and 
working with the City’s Department of Public Works to temporarily stripe 
new crosswalks for pedestrians as highlighted in orange in Exhibit A.  
 
Owner is required to apply for separate Flagging Permits that are outside 
the scope of this License when closing roads that abut the Property and 
shall advise abutters of all Flagging Permit applications in advance. Owner 
is also required to provide weekly updates to abutters regarding 
construction activity for the following week until the project is complete. 

 
9. Damage:  Licensee agrees to remedy any damage to the License Area 

caused by the Licensee’s activities. The work will be performed by 
Licensee to City specifications and survive the terms of this Agreement. 
The City may elect to accept reasonable reimbursement from the 
Licensee in lieu of Licensee’s repairing the damage.    



 

 3 

 
10. Compliance with Other Laws:  This Agreement does not relieve 

Licensee from compliance with any other local, state or federal laws or 
regulations or conditions imposed by any local board. Failure to abide by 
any local, state or federal laws or regulations or any condition of a site 
plan may, at the City’s discretion, result in revocation. 

 
11. Revocation:  The City may terminate this Agreement, or any provision 

contained in this agreement on 72 hours written notice if Licensee fails to 
meet the terms and conditions of this License or if the public interest 
requires such termination. No 72-hour written notification is required by 
the City if it is an emergency. 

 
12. Contractor and Subcontractor Parking:  Licensee understands and 

agrees that its contractors and subcontractors for the project shall not use 
on-street parking. Language will be inserted in Licensee’s vendors and 
suppliers Purchase Orders and Trade Subcontracts that make the 
prohibition against parking on City streets mandatory. Contractors shall 
limit/ manage construction vehicles and deliveries to avoid disruption to 
businesses, particularly during the holiday season.  Contractors may use 
loading zones for active loading and unloading of materials, equipment 
and tools. 
 

Dated this    day of     , 2025. 
 

 City of Portsmouth 
 

 By:       
     Karen S. Conard, City Manager 
 
     Pursuant to vote of the City Council      
     of _____________________. 
 
 

Dated this    day of     , 2025. 
 

EIGHTKPH, LLC 
 
       
By:       

       
              Thomas H. Balon, Jr., Manager 
     
 

                   
h/jferrini/secondlicenseextension//70maplewood 













































 

1 | P a g e  
 

LICENSE AGREEMENT 
 

The City of Portsmouth, a municipal corporation with a principal place of business 
at 1 Junkins Avenue, Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801 (hereinafter “City”) and 
Seacoast Eat Local, Inc., a non-profit of individual vendors (hereinafter sometimes 
“Vendors" or "SEL”) with a principal place of business and a mailing address at 4 Captain 
Smith Emerson Road, Lee, New Hampshire 03861, and hereby agree as follows: 
 
 1) Seacoast Eat Local (“SEL”) is licensed by the Portsmouth City Council to 
operate a Farmers’ Market on Saturday mornings between May 3, 2025, through 
October 25, 2025, pursuant to the conditions enumerated below.  
 
 2) Each individual Vendor of SEL, as well as SEL itself, jointly and severally 
agree to the following conditions relative to permission to use the designated locations by 
SEL as granted by the City.  
 
A. LOCATION: 

 
This Agreement addresses the Upper Municipal Lot at the Municipal Complex 
(the Lot), 1 Junkins Avenue, Portsmouth, New Hampshire, as shown in the 
attached Exhibit A. 
 

B. SITE CONDITIONS: 
 
1. The City Hall Municipal Lot will be reserved for use by SEL as shown in the 

attached Exhibit A. (The Market Area) 
 

2. On each Friday before the Farmers’ Market, the City will place signage in 
the City Hall Municipal Lot prohibiting parking and reserving handicapped 
parking in the Lot on the following Saturday from 6:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.  
 

3. SEL is authorized to cover the existing handicapped parking signs in the 
Market Area and to utilize the spaces otherwise designated as handicapped 
spaces during the hours in which the Farmers’ Market is authorized.   
 

4. SEL shall immediately remove the coverings from the handicap parking 
space signs at the end of the authorized period. 
 

5. There shall be no use by SEL of Lot B as shown in the attached Exhibit A. 
 

6. Parking on grassy areas prohibited. 
 

7. Market Area to be left in broom-clean condition one hour after closing. 
 

8. The City shall place trash receptacles for use during the Farmers’ Market in 
the type and number which it deems appropriate. The City shall remove and 
dispose of the trash from the receptacles at the close of each market. 
 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

9. All trash generated by the Farmers’ Market shall be collected by SEL and 
placed in City trash receptacles upon closing of the Farmers’ Market and 
the Market Area shall be maintained in a clean, neat condition at all times. 
 

10. SEL shall provide for the collection and disposal of all compost generated 
by the Farmers’ Market. 

 

11. SEL shall implement any temporary marking of Vendor spaces which may 
be directed by the City. 

 

12. SEL shall provide police coverage from 8:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. as may be 
directed by the Police Chief, at its own expense, to control traffic and 
monitor parking during the hours when the Farmers' Market is in operation.  

 

13. SEL agrees to operate the Farmers’ Market on a “CARRY IN – CARRY 
OUT” basis. 

 

14. SEL agrees to operate the Farmers’ Market under the Distribution of Single 
Use Disposables Ordinance, as shown on attached Exhibit B. 

 

15. SEL shall reserve a stall at each market in a location agreeable to the City 
for City use as directed by the City Manager, including but not limited to 
municipal and Portsmouth Library utilization. The City will make its best 
efforts to inform any persons so directed of market policies, and to provide 
SEL in advance with the names and contact information of same.   
 

16. SEL is permitted to hire musicians to perform during the Farmers’ Market 
hours of operation. Unamplified music is preferred but amplification will be 
permitted provided sound levels are maintained at a limit of 90 dBA or lower. 

 
C. HOURS AND TIME OF MARKET: 

 
1. Hours of operation will be from 8:00 a.m. until 12:00 p.m. 
 
2. Set up and breakdown time will be two hours before and one hour after 

operation hours. 
 
D. SALE OF ITEMS: 

 
1. Products which may be sold at the Farmers’ Market shall follow the 

guidelines and definitions outlined within the SEL Summer Farmers’ Market 
Policies (a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit C). 

 
2. Prior to the commencement of the market season, SEL shall provide the 

City with a list of approved market Vendors. 
 



 

3 | P a g e  
 

3. After the commencement of the season, new food vendors may only be 
added to the Farmers’ Market on two dates to be predetermined by the 
Health Officer. 

 
E. HEALTH REQUIREMENTS: 

 
The Health Officer will have the authority to issue warnings and provide reasonable 
notice to cure. The Health Officer will also have the authority to shut down the 
entire market if any single Vendor fails to comply with any Health Officer’s directive 
to cure any situation creating a public health concern.  The Health Officer shall 
make reasonable efforts to notify the Executive Director of Seacoast Eat Local or 
their assignee(s) at the time a warning or shutdown is issued.  Specific health 
requirements include, but are not limited to the following: 
 
1. Representatives of the Portsmouth Health Department will be on-site to 

check vendors in on three (3) separate days, the first will be on opening 
day, May 3, 2025, and the other two (2) days will be scheduled and noticed 
as needed.  

a. Vendors must be checked in by the Portsmouth Health Department 
prior to transacting any business at the Farmers’ Market. Vendors 
are only required to be checked in once. 

 
2. Vendors shall be excepted from the general City requirement of obtaining a 

Hawkers & Peddlers License ($250.00).  The following license fee schedule 
payable to the City shall apply to Farmers’ Market Vendors:  

 
(a) Fruit and vegetable vendors at the Farmers’ Market pay no fee. 
 
(b) Non-produce/Non-food vendors at the Farmers’ Market pay no fee. 
 

(c) Prepared food vendors (anything other than non-prepared fruits 
and vegetables) and sellers of potentially hazardous agricultural 
products pay a seasonal fee of $140.00 per season. 

 
3. Non-recycled farm fresh eggs may be sold provided that they are stored at 

proper temperature (at or below forty-one (41) degrees Fahrenheit) during 
transport to and while displayed at the Farmers’ Market. 

 
4. Baked goods sold at the Farmers’ Market must be individually or collectively 

wrapped while displayed and sold and baked in a licensed facility. 
 

5. Any Vendor who sells Foods [Time/Temperature Controlled for Safety 
(TCS)] (which includes any perishable food or food product which consists 
in whole or in part of milk or any other ingredient capable of supporting rapid 
and progressive growth of infectious and toxigenic microorganisms 
including, but not limited to, cream fillings and pies, cakes and pastries, 
custard products, meringue-topped baked goods or butter-cream type 
fillings in bakery products, meats and poultry) shall take appropriate 
measures to ensure that such products are transported, stored, and 



 

4 | P a g e  
 

displayed in refrigerated or ice-cooled containers to maintain temperature 
of such products at 41 degrees Fahrenheit or below at all times to prevent 
spoilage or contamination. Any Vendor who sells cooked/hot TCS foods 
shall ensure that such products are cooked to required product 
temperatures as described in the Food Code or reheated to 165 degrees 
Fahrenheit for 15 seconds, and transported, stored and displayed in hot 
holding units at 135 degrees Fahrenheit or above at all times to prevent 
spoilage or contamination. 

 

6. All animals are prohibited within the Farmers’ Market with the exception of 
hearing ear dogs, guide dogs and service dogs as they are defined in RSA 
167-D:1. 

 

7. SEL may install up to two signs indicating that dogs are prohibited at the 
Farmers’ Market. SEL will install and remove signs during the set up and 
breakdown period of each Farmers' Market event. SEL may store signs on 
site with the large barricades that are placed up against the Connors 
Cottage senior housing building. 

 

8. The above items do not eliminate or supersede other areas of compliance 
set by ordinance or regulations or within the grant of authority by the 
Portsmouth City Council. 

 

9. In addition to the foregoing, each Vendor of Seacoast Eat Local shall 
comply with all applicable Federal, State and Municipal laws, regulations 
and ordinances. 

 

10. No vendor shall provide fruit or vegetables to be sampled onsite unless a 
three-bay sink is provided, to properly wash-rinse-sanitize all equipment 
and utensils used for sampling (knife, cutting board, colander, etc.). The 
colander is then used for washing fruits and vegetables to be sampled.  A 
potable water source must be provided to wash fruits or vegetables prior to 
service.   

 

11. On-site food preparation and equipment are limited to simple grilling, 
reheating/hot holding, dispensing and assembling of foods and beverages. 

 

12. No combustion-powered electrical generators are to be used at the market. 
 
F. OTHER CONDITIONS: 
  

1. SEL shall maintain and provide the City with a current list of board members 
including appropriate contact information. 
 

2. SEL agrees to indemnify and hold the City, its officials, employees, 
volunteers and agents of Portsmouth harmless for any and all claims of 
liability (including bodily injury or property damage) of any type or kind 



 

5 | P a g e  
 

arising out of SEL’s operation or use of this License Agreement and the 
license area.  This provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.   

 

3. Additionally, Seacoast Eat Local shall maintain general liability insurance in 
the amount of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) naming the City of 
Portsmouth as an additional insured in a form approved by the City.  A 
certificate demonstrating this insurance shall be kept on file with the City 
Clerk of the City at all times relevant to the operation of SEL under this 
Agreement. 

 

4. The City hereby approves the sale and tastings as allowed by the New 
Hampshire State Liquor commission of alcohol products at the Farmers’ 
Market by SEL members. A list of SEL members permitted to sell, possess 
or provide sampling of alcohol is provided in Exhibit D which may be 
amended by the parties during the term of this Agreement. 
 
Further alcohol sales or possession is allowed as may be approved in 
writing by the City Manager. 
 
There shall be no open containers or consumption of alcoholic beverages 
on municipal premises unless sampling has been approved by the State 
Liquor Commission for the specific vendor and is done in accordance with 
Commission rules and regulations. All alcoholic beverage sales must be 
conducted in strict accordance with state law and any rules adopted 
pursuant thereto by the State of New Hampshire Liquor Commission.  This 
provision of the Agreement with SEL may be revoked immediately and 
without cause if that action is determined to be appropriate by the City. 

 

5. For the purpose of operating the Farmers’ Market on the property of the City 
of Portsmouth, it is understood that a Homestead License issued by the 
State of New Hampshire, a Home Food Processors License issued by the 
State of Maine, or a Residential/Wholesale Kitchen license issued by the 
State of Massachusetts are not recognized or confer any benefit to the 
Vendor. 
 

6. SEL will display a banner (see Exhibit E attached hereto) at a location 
either to the left or the right of the 1 Junkins Avenue egress driveway as 
shown on the attached image of the proposed areas (Exhibit F) during 
times in which the Farmers’ Market is in operation. 
 
(a) SEL’s banner to be used is 96” x 24” as shown on Exhibit E. 
(b) SEL shall place the banner in one of the two locations to the right or       

left of the egress of 1 Junkins Avenue as shown on Exhibit F. 
(c) SEL shall only place the banner from the hours of 7:00 AM to 1:00    

PM on the day of the Farmers’ Market during the 2025 season 
running from May 3, 2025, through October 25, 2025. 

 
7. SEL will operate in accordance with its weather cancellation policy (see 

Exhibit G attached hereto). 



 

6 | P a g e  
 

 
8. This agreement may be terminated at the sole discretion of the City of 

Portsmouth in the event that: 
 

(a) SEL or any Vendor fails to abide by the terms of this agreement. 
 

(b) It is determined that the City of Portsmouth has a paramount need 
for the area which would otherwise be utilized by SEL. 
 

9. The City reserves the right to modify any provision in this agreement in the 
event that such modification is made necessary by any change in local, 
state or federal law.   

 
 

 
 
      CITY OF PORTSMOUTH 
 
 
Dated:         By:       
           Karen S. Conard, City Manager 
 
 
 

SEACOAST EAT LOCAL, INC. 
 
 

Dated:         By:        
           Shawn Menard, Executive Director 



LEASE AMENDMENT 3 

WHEREAS, the City of Portsmouth, a municipal corporation organized and existing under 
the laws of the State of New Hampshire and having a usual place of business at 1 Junkins 
Avenue in Portsmouth, (the “City”), and the Players’ Ring Company, organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of New Hampshire and having a principal place of business at 99-
105 Marcy Street, Portsmouth, New Hampshire, (“Players’ Ring”), are parties to a lease, 
executed on September 8, 2013;  

WHEREAS, the existing lease obligates the Players’ Ring to pay for and construct certain 
capital improvements in accordance a schedule devised and mutually agreed upon by the 
parties; 

WHEREAS, the capital improvements listed in the existing schedule have been completed 
and the City and the Players’ Ring are presently negotiating the scope and nature of the 
capital improvements to be included in the schedule for the new lease; 

WHEREAS, on December 16, 2024, the City Council agreed to extend the lease for three 
months through March 31, 2025 in order to give the parties time to create a new schedule of 
capital improvements to incorporate into the new lease;  

WHEREAS, the creation of this new schedule is complicated due to the challenges  
associated with adjacent properties and infrastructure needs associated with implementation 
of the Prescott Park’s Master Plan.  

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and Players’ Ring agree as follows: 

1. Paragraph 3 shall be amended to read as follows:

The term of this lease shall end June 30, 2025.  Notwithstanding any other 
provision in this lease, this lease may be terminated by the Players’ Ring upon 
thirty (30) days written notice to the City.   

All other terms of the lease not amended shall remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease Amendment 3 on 
____________________, 2025. 

WITNESS: CITY OF PORTSMOUTH 

Karen S. Conard 
City Manager 

Approved by vote of the City Council 



 

 2 

on ___________________________.  
 
WITNESS     PLAYERS’ RING COMPANY  
 
             

Margherita Giacobbi, 
      Executive Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
l/jferrini/keases/playersring/amendment3 



Projecting Sign – 28 Deer Street  
 

M E M O R A N D U M  

TO: Karen Conard, City Manager 

FROM: Peter Britz, Planning & Sustainability Director  
DATE: March 3, 2025 
RE: City Council Referral – Projecting Signs 

Address: 28 Deer Street  
Business Name: Eiger Insurance Services 
Business Owners: Ken Schmidt 

  
Permission is being sought to install a projecting sign that extends over the public right 
of way, as follows: 

Sign dimensions:  24” x 36” 
Sign area: 6 sq. ft.    
  

The proposed sign complies with zoning requirements. If a license is granted by the City 
Council, no other municipal approvals are needed. Therefore, I recommend approval of 
a revocable municipal license, subject to the following conditions: 

1. The license shall be approved by the Legal Department as to content and form; 
2. Any removal or relocation of the sign(s), for any reason, shall be done at no cost 

to the City; and 
3. Any disturbance of a sidewalk, street or other public infrastructure resulting from 

the installation, relocation or removal of the sign(s), for any reason, shall be 
restored at no cost to the City and shall be subject to review and acceptance by 
the Department of Public Works. 

 



2

28
22

40

34

33

205

195

165

185
175

171
167

401

200

406

402

157

207

210
206

208

227

182

MARKET ST

DEER ST

Request for license
28 Deer Street² 0 60 12030

Feet
Map produced by Planning & Sustainability Department 3-3-25







Projecting Sign – 19 Market Street  
 

M E M O R A N D U M  

TO: Karen Conard, City Manager 

FROM: Peter Britz, Planning & Sustainability Director  
DATE: March 7, 2025 
RE: City Council Referral – Projecting Signs 

Address: 19 Market Street  
Business Name: Fair Winds Home, LLC 
Business Owners: John & Cari Karonis 

  
Permission is being sought to install a projecting sign that extends over the public right 
of way, as follows: 

Sign dimensions:  26” x 26” 
Sign area: 4.69 sq. ft.    
  

The proposed sign complies with zoning requirements. If a license is granted by the City 
Council, no other municipal approvals are needed. Therefore, I recommend approval of 
a revocable municipal license, subject to the following conditions: 

1. The license shall be approved by the Legal Department as to content and form; 
2. Any removal or relocation of the sign(s), for any reason, shall be done at no cost 

to the City; and 
3. Any disturbance of a sidewalk, street or other public infrastructure resulting from 

the installation, relocation or removal of the sign(s), for any reason, shall be 
restored at no cost to the City and shall be subject to review and acceptance by 
the Department of Public Works. 

 



0

3
3

3 3
3

3 3

9

6

5
1

32

4
6

8

9

4

6

5 7 9

8
2

9
5

1
60

33

13
11

98
96

36
36

36
36

34
38

32
3020

20

11

16

10 12

10

20
10

18 12

16
18

20

24

36

40
42

46
48

52

56

60

62

64
78

80

10
88

65
63
61

57
55
53
49
47
45

41

31
25
23
21
19
13 11

26

22

15
21

10 22
50

52
54

106
108

112
114

126

128

MA
RK

ET
 S

T

DANIEL ST

PENHALLOW ST

MARKET SQ

Request for license
19 Market Street² 0 60 12030

Feet
Map produced by Planning & Sustainability Department 3-7-25





Distance 
from 
bottom 
of sign to 
sidewalk 
= 12’ 9”





	 	
Portsmouth Music and Arts Center 

973 Islington Street 
Portsmouth, NH  03801 

603.431.4278 
www.PMAConline.org 

	
	
March	6,	2025	
	
To	City	Manager	Conard	and	the	Portsmouth	City	Council,	
	
The	Portsmouth	Music	and	Arts	Center	requests	permission	to	have	
a	small	parade	from	Portsmouth’s	African	Burying	Ground	to	the	
Vaughn	Mall	on	Friday,	April	11	at	noon	as	part	of	our	Jazz	
Appreciation	Month	celebrations.		
	
The	New	Orleans-style	parade	will	cause	minimal	traffic	
interruption	as	it	will	involve	only	one	group	of	approximately	60	
student	musicians	leaving	the	African	Burying	Ground,	crossing	
State	Street	at	a	crosswalk,	moving	to	Chestnut	Street,	and	past	the	
front	entrance	of	The	Music	Hall,	crossing	Congress	Street	at	a	
crosswalk,	and	ending	at	the	Vaughn	Mall	Stage.		
	
The	parade	will	be	led	by	members	of	the	Grammy	Award-winning	
New	Orleans	Jazz	Orchestra,	which	will	be	in	town	for	five	days,	
from	April	7	to	11,	working	with	the	Portsmouth	Middle	and	High	
School	Bands	and	youth	students	at	PMAC.	These	students	will	
march	in	the	parade	alongside	seven	members	of	the	New	Orleans	
Jazz	Orchestra.	The	parade	will	take	approximately	ten	minutes,	
with	most	of	the	time	at	the	African	Burying	Ground	at	the	start,	and	
at	the	Vaughn	Mall	at	the	end.	Each	of	the	street	crossings	will	take	
under	90	seconds.	
	
Volunteer	chaperones	will	be	present	to	help	at	street	crossings,	as	
will	PMAC	faculty	and	staff.	
	
The	program	is	free	for	all	participants	and	schools	and	is	being	
funded	by	PMAC	with	generous	support	from	local	donors.	The	New	
Orleans	style	parade	is	the	culminating	event	of	a	week	of	work	with	
the	students.	
	
We	respectfully	submit	this	request	and	are	available	to	address	
questions	or	concerns.	
	
Sincerely,	
	
	
	
	
Russ	Grazier,	CEO	
	

Board of Directors 
 
Lisa Shawney 
Chair 
 
William Durling 
Vice Chair 
 
Brooks Jalbert 
Treasurer 
 
Danielle O’Neil 
Secretary 
 
Mark Anderson 
Jim Buttrick 
Forrest Elliott 
Joe Keefe 
Nancy Pearson 
Stephen Ritchie 
Charles Riopel 
Cleo Villaflores 
Beth Wagner 
Rick Wallis 
Susan Wolowitz 
 
* indicates past chair 
 
 
Leadership Staff 
 
Russ Grazier, Jr. 
Chief Executive Officer 
 
Katie Grazier 
Chief Operating Officer 
 
Eli Kaynor 
Chief Development Officer 
 
Michelle Shoemaker 
Director of Education 
 
Melissa Schultz 
Director of Marketing 
 
 
 
 
 



Red Bull Distribution Company
44 Industrial Park Rd· Dover, NH 03878 

Tel.: 603-389-6035 

Dear Portsmouth City Officials, 

We, Redbull Distribution Company, are pleased to submit this proposal to host a charitable event as part 
of the “Wings For Life World Run” in Portsmouth on May 4th, 2025, at Pierce Island.

Event Details: 
 Date and Time: May 4th, 2025, 7:00AM EST
 Location: Pierce Island, Portsmouth NH
 Target Participators: Employees at Redbull Distribution Company, and their families
 Event Activity Highlight: Walking route through the public access trails on Pierce Island 

Objectives:
 Raise awareness for the active pursuit towards the discovery of a cure for spinal cord injury 

research.
 Raise money that goes directly towards research project funding- supported by the Wings for Life 

Foundation. 
 Bring members of our team together along with their families for a sense of team-building, and 

community which will be united by a common goal. 
Logistics and Operations: 

 We will need to allow additional street parking, if possible, due to the inability to reserve spots in 
the public parking lot area. We are not expecting a participation number that will require DOT or 
police presence for traffic control. This is a small-scale event for out small-scale office. 

 Our team is very respectful and responsible, and we will adhere to all cleanliness protocols in this 
shared public space. 

Next Steps: 
We are eager to discuss this proposal further and answer any additional inquiries you may have . Please 
contact the event coordinator, Michelle Wall, at 603-550-3304. Our goal is to have this reviewed at your 
next city board meeting. 

Sincerely, 
Michelle Wall
Office Administrator 

______________________ _________________

General Sales Manager Signature Date

Derrick Perreault 02/28/2025

Document ID: 250564145535052



 

 

 

 

March 6th, 2025 

City of Portsmouth 
Mayor’s Office 
1 Junkins Avenue 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
 
Dear Honorable Mayor McEachern and City Council Members, 
 
The Portsmouth chapter of the AFSP Out of the Darkness Walk has hosted a fundraising and educational 
walk since 2006 in Portsmouth.  This event has grown to more than 600 walkers annually. We would like 
to continue the tradition and success of this program and are asking for permission to again host an in-
person Out of the Darkness Community Walk in the City of Portsmouth.  
 
The proposed date and time are as follows. 
 
Date: September 20, 2025 (Saturday) 
 
Registration Begins: 9:00am 
 
Walk Duration: 10am – 1pm 
 
We would like to again request use of Pierce Island as the event location and walk starting point again 
this year. We would like to request access to electricity (Extension cord) as in past years as well.  
 
We would like to thank you for your consideration and look forward to your decision. 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Ken La Valley, Chair 
OOTD Walk Committee 
603-556-0823 
66 Hunter Lane 
Barrington, NH  03825 





 
The Portsmouth Halloween Parade 
36 Maplewood Avenue  
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
portsmouthhalloweenparade@gmail.com  
 
 

March 1, 2024 
 
To: City Council of Portsmouth 
1 Junkins Avenue 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
 
Honorable Mayor McEachern and City Councilors: 
 
I am writing today to request permission to hold the 30th Portsmouth Halloween Parade, this year to 
take place on Friday, October 31st. We would like to once again step off from Peirce Island at 7:00 
pm. We seek to stage and organize the Parade on the island beginning at 6:00 pm. We would like to 
utilize the boat launch, Four Tree Island parking lot, and the Outdoor Pool lots for marchers and their 
vehicles.  
 
The parade route itself will remain the same (see attached map). We recognize that we have 
benefited greatly from the efforts of the Department of Public Works over the years, who provide 
barricades, large vehicles to harden to corners, and cleanup. We would ask that they assist us once 
again in these matters, in addition to closing down the affected streets beginning at 5:30 pm, or 
whatever time they deem fitting. The plan would be to reopen them no later than 8:30 pm.  
 
We will of course carry the usual insurance that is required. Further, we would work with Police and 
Fire Departments who ensure a safe and entertaining parade, and to whom we are very grateful for 
all their planning and assistance. We look forward to your response. Thank you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jonathan Day 
Board of the Portsmouth Halloween Parade 
 
 
cc/ Karen Conard, City Manager 
Jessica Griffin, Assistant to the City Manager 
Joanna Diemer, Administrative Assistant 

mailto:portsmouthhalloweenparade@gmail.com




City Council Emails – February 27, 2025 – March 13, 2025 

Submitted on Thu, 02/27/2025 - 11:02 

Submitted by: Anonymous 

Submitted values are: 

First Name 
Gerald 
 
Last Name 
Duffy 
 
Email 
gduffy44@gmail.com 
 
Address 
428 Pleasant St., Unit 3 
Portsmouth, New Hampshire. 03801 
 
Message 
Dear Mayor and Councilors: 
 
This evening (Feb 27) the Planning Board will discuss a proposed amendment that will allow a co-
living project in downtown Portsmouth that will potentially house 82 service workers. This is good 
news and it’s pretty cool that the Planning Board has been willing to fast-track this amendment. 
Advocates for affordable housing are also asking for general Council support too. 
 
Many downtown workers (there are probably over 1,000 of them during the warmer months) are 
young. At their stage of life, a small space with shared facilities and the chance to live vehicle-free 
and close to work is appealing and adequate. It’s also very good for our downtown itself and its 
vibrancy. We lost a similar project on Court Street several years ago because of a short-sighted ZBA 
decision. It would be tragic to repeat that kind of missed opportunity. Having the City Council 
generally support affordable housing initiatives, especially new and innovative approaches, is 
essential if you are to make a dent in the estimated shortfall of over 3,000 rental units. 
 
Thanks in advance for your efforts to address housing, which accounts, own or rent, for by far the 
biggest chunk of household budgets and is easily the most important issue facing many of 
Portsmouth’s residents today. 
 
Regards, 
Gerald Duffy 
 
 
Please indicate if you would like your comment to be part of the public record for the 
upcoming City Council meeting. 
Yes 

mailto:gduffy44@gmail.com


 

 

Submitted on Sun, 03/02/2025 - 12:18 

Submitted by: Anonymous 

Submitted values are: 

First Name 
Jennifer 
 
Last Name 
Carsen 
 
Email 
jcarsen@gmail.com 
 
Address 
890 Woodbury Ave. 
Portsmouth, New Hampshire. 03801 
 
Message 
I was heartbroken to see the story on Seacoast Online about the proposed teacher layoffs for the 
2025-26 school year. Brennan Lynch has taught both of our children at Portsmouth Middle School, 
and she is a wonderful teacher--skilled, invested, and enthusiastic. She represents the very best of 
our teaching talent here in Portsmouth, and it would be a true injustice for her to lose her job. I'm 
sure other at-risk teachers, though they aren't specifically named in the article, are equally 
dedicated and talented.  
 
More broadly, as Ms. Lynch points out, teacher cuts hurt the children in our town. Educating our 
youth is one of the most important jobs (one could argue THE most important job) of local 
government, and Portsmouth's strong schools are a source of strength and pride for our city. The 
bottom line is that we can't have great schools without being willing to invest in our teaching talent. 
I would respectfully urge the city council to reconsider the 2.9% budget increase so that we can 
retain Ms. Lynch and our other valuable teachers here in Portsmouth.  
 
Sincerely, 
Jennifer Carsen 
 
Please indicate if you would like your comment to be part of the public record for the 
upcoming City Council meeting. 
Yes 
 

 

 

mailto:jcarsen@gmail.com


Submitted on Sun, 03/02/2025 - 14:55 

Submitted by: Anonymous 

Submitted values are: 

First Name 
Jennifer 
 
Last Name 
Branch 
 
Email 
jbranch@sau52.org 
 
Address 
19 September Dr 
Greenland, New Hampshire. 03840 
 
Message 
Jennifer Branch 
19 September Drive 
Greenland, NH 03840 
March 2, 2025 
City Council Members 
Portsmouth City Council 
1 Junkins Ave 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
Dear Members of the City Council, 
I am writing as a Portsmouth teacher to express my deep concern regarding the school budget cap 
of 2.9% increase over FY 25, essentially a deep cut to our school budget. First let me say that I 
appreciate the attentiveness and desire for good stewardship when considering the FY 2026 
budgets. However, I strongly believe that these cuts will have significant long-term costs to the city. 
Wise stewardship would require strategic budget revision that supports education, and as Governor 
Ayotte recently said, “Budget cuts should be made with a scalpel not a shovel.” 
Capping the FY 26 budget at 2.9% over FY 25 creates an arbitrary, “shovel-like,” cut to services 
currently offered in Portsmouth Schools. Though the Social Security Administration’s COLA for 
2025 was 2.5%, the home valuation in Portsmouth rose 50-60%. The cost of eggs increased 28%, 
there was an 8% increase in healthcare services, and an 8.25% increase in electricity. If rising costs 
normalized above 2.9%, why do we create a blanket cap on education? School costs in utilities, 
contracted services, and supplies rise just like everywhere else in commerce. It would be prudent 
to scrutinize what the cost of education in Portsmouth requires in order to offer level servicing 
without undue current or future costs. 
For instance, cutting the budget to a 2.9% cap will likely result in the loss of 15 staff positions. 
While the Superintendent has used a scalpel to reduce the proposed budget, there is no way to 
meet the council request without the loss of staff positions. Fifteen less staff directly translates to 
larger class sizes, fewer curriculum options, and fewer resources for students. Larger class sizes 
will directly affect student achievement, particularly harmful to the financially and ethnically 

mailto:jbranch@sau52.org


diverse population in Portsmouth. When students do not receive the support they need to succeed, 
they are more likely to fall behind, causing more money in staffing and programming to help them 
meet expectations in the future.  
Along those same lines, cuts to school funding directly impact special education services. 
Students who used to receive early intervention in a well-funded system could develop more 
serious learning challenges requiring programming or staffing. We have federal obligations under 
IDEA to provide these costly services to identified students with disabilities each year, regardless of 
budgetary constraints. Just recently, Governor Ayotte demonstrated using a scalpel to adjust a 
budget with her proposed budget cutting costs in other areas, but supporting education with 
increased funding at the same time. She pledged an additional 50% funding to special education in 
the future, recognizing the skyrocketing costs required to give students the resources they need. In 
contrast, we would be doing the opposite by cutting the very staff that support our students. 
Finally, it is also important to remember that a well-regarded school system attracts families and 
businesses and investment. Companies are more likely to move to or expand in communities 
where the schools are strong and where there is a well-prepared workforce. By cutting funding for 
education now, we risk being known as the city who doesn’t support education, its teachers or its 
school system. We cannot even conceptualize the extent of that cost on the future of the city. 
Rather than holding an arbitrary cap to school funding in FY 26, I urge the city council to partner 
with the school board for a better budget offering level services in the leanest measures, without 
reduction of staff. Be fiscally responsible AND ensure our students receive the education they 
deserve while also protecting our community in the long term. A commitment to our schools is a 
commitment to the future success of the city. 
 
Thank you for your time and consideration. 
Sincerely, 
 
Jennifer Branch 
 
 
 
 
Please indicate if you would like your comment to be part of the public record for the 
upcoming City Council meeting. 
Yes 

 

 

Submitted on Sun, 03/09/2025 - 16:04 

Submitted by: Anonymous 

Submitted values are: 

First Name 
Mary Lou 
 
Last Name 



McElwain 
 
Email 
ml259@comcast.net 
 
Address 
259 South Street 
Portsmouth, New Hampshire. 03801 
 
Message 
I am assuming you all know the work that Andrea Amico has done on PFAS contamination, starting 
at Pease. An excellent article describing her accomplishments was in Portsmouth Herald last 
Sunday. 
I am hoping/ requesting that the City Council acknowledges Andrea and her “team” at City Council 
meeting and gift her (with what the City usually does) for her outstanding contribution to 
community health. 
Thank you. Mary Lou McElwain 
 
Please indicate if you would like your comment to be part of the public record for the 
upcoming City Council meeting. 
Yes  

mailto:ml259@comcast.net


 
CITY OF PORTSMOUTH 

 
LEGAL DEPARTMENT 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
DATE:  MARCH 12, 2025 
 
TO:  KELLI BARNABY, CITY CLERK 
 
FROM: TREVOR P. MCCOURT, DEPUTY CITY ATTORNEY 
 
RE:  AGENDA ITEM – LICENSE AGREEMENT REQUEST – CHRIS ADAMS 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 66 COAKLEY ROAD 
              
 

Chris Adams owns a residential property located at 66 Coakley Road. The rear of his 
property abuts City owned land, upon which he has constructed a white vinyl fence. The City 
land is encumbered by an easement to Eversource, however Chris Adams has confirmed that 
the fence does not obstruct Eversource’s maintenance activities. The fence currently 
encroaches on Tax Map 234, Lot 7-3.  

 
Chris Adams requests to be granted a revocable license for his fence, and for the ability 

to utilize the yard space within the fence. He is not requested to install any other permanent 
structures.  

 
Proposed Motion: Authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a revocable 

license to Chris Adams of City owned property adjacent to 66 Coakley Road for the purposes of 
installing, maintaining and replacing a fence, and for ordinary yard maintenance.   
 
 
CC: Karen S. Conard, City Manager 
 Susan G. Morrell, City Attorney 
 Jessica Griffin, Assistant to City Manager 























 

 

 
 
 
March 7, 2025 
 
Eva Boice 
98 Court Street 
Portsmouth, NH 03801 
 

Dear Mayor McEachern & City Council, 
 
Please accept my resignation from the Cemetery Committee. It has been a wonderful 
experience and I will miss everyone. 

 

Thank you,  

 Eva Boice 

 
 



1

2024 - Board and Commission Meeting Attendance Records

Arts & Cultural Commission  (10 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Aichele, Gen 10 0 0 100%

Cook, Kate (Councilor) 10 0 0 100%
Cooper, Jeffrey 10 0 0 100%
Dickey, Jessica 10 0 0 100%
Goldman, Ken 9 1 0 90%

Goodrich, Jason 7 3 0 70%
Grim, Linnea 8 2 0 80%

Kaynor, Eli 10 0 0 100%
McDowell, Theresa 10 0 0 100%

Perkins, Courtney 7 3 0 70%
Rosania, Karen 10 0 0 100%

Saarela, Catherine 9 1 0 90%
Stratton, Emma 9 1 0 90%

Cable Commission ( 6 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Abrams, Jeff 5 1 0 83%

Capone, Robert 6 0 0 100%
Chicooree. Amrishi 4 2 0 66%

Lowe, Gary 6 0 0 100%
Rodriguez, Luis 6 0 0 100%



2

Cemetery Committee (8 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Boice, Eva 7 1 0 70%

Brooks, Celeste 7 1 0 70%
Buzzell, Stephen 5 3 0 66%

Forte, Deidre 7 1 0 70%
Griffin, Michael 8 0 0 100%

MacCallum, Duncan 4 4 0 50%
Polidura, Sue 8 0 0 100%

Splaine, Peter 8 0 0 100%
Sterry, Susan 8 0 0 100%

Citizens Advisory (6 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Barton, Kristen 5 1 0 83%

Decourcy, Kelly 5 1 0 83%
Durling, Susan 5 1 0 83%

Hartley, Annelise 6 0 0 100%
Meade, Hannah 5 1 0 83%

Citywide Neighborhood Committee (6 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Berling, Christian 5 1 0 83%

Blalock, Rich (Councilor) 3 2 0 15%
Gatchell, William 5 1 0 83%

Hale, Kenneth 5 1 0 83%
Ovecka, Colleen 6 0 0 100%
Somssich, Peter 5 1 0 83%



3

Conservation Commission (12 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Blasko, Jessica 9 3 0 75%

Carey, Alice (1st mtg in January) 10 2 0 80%
Collins, Samantha 9 3 0 75%

Gibb, Brian 12 0 0 100%
McMillan, Barbara 12 0 0 100%
Sheppard, Stewart 11 0 1 90%

(1st Mtg in February ) Sperduto, Talia 10 1 0 90%
Vaccaro, Lynn 11 1 0 90%

Economic Development Commission ( 12 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Cohen, Philip 8 4 0 67%

Eaton, Everett 6 6 0 50%
Lachance, Sarah 12 0 0 100%

Lehoux, Jacob 7 5 0 58%
Marchewka, Robert 10 2 0 83%

Scumaci, Jen 9 3 0 75%
Ward, Andrew 10 2 0 83%

Watson, Thomas 12 0 0 100%
Weidman, Anne 12 0 0 100%

Howard, Anna 10 2 0 83%

Historic Distirct Commission (16 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Adams, David 14 2 0 88%

Brown, Daniel 15 1 0 94%
Doering, Margot 16 0 0 100%
Ruedig, Reagan 16 0 0 100%

Ryan, Martin 14 2 0 88%
Wyckoff, Jonathan 16 0 0 100%

Booz, Larry 14 2 0 88%



4

Housing Committee (16 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Anderson, Eric 14 2 0 87%

Corsetti, Megan 13 3 0 81%
Kelley, JoAnna, Assistant Mayor 14 2 0 87%

Kozak, Tracy 12 4 0 75%
Loane, Mary 15 1 0 93%

Matto, Byron 14 2 0 87%
Migirditch, Dagan 15 1 0 93%

Moreau, Beth, Councilor 16 0 0 100%
O'Leary, John 13 3 0 81%

Samonas, Andrew 3 3 0 50%
Tabor, John, Councilor 15 1 0 93%
Thomas, Jen Stebbins 14 2 0 87%

Library Brd. of Trustees (  meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Delekta, Kelly 8 1 0 89%

deRuiter, Katinka 8 1 0 89%
Fabrega, Meganne 9 0 0 100%

filion, Marsha 8 1 0 89%
Mandelbaum, Jennifer 3 9 0 33%

McLaughlin, Tyler 8 1 0 89%
Peppas, Maria 9 0 0 100%

Stern, Jeff 8 1 0 89%

Parking & Traffic Safety (11 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Allen, David  11 1 92%

McElwain, Mary Lou 9 2 82%
Pesci, Stephen 11 0 100%
Syracusa, Mark 9 2 82%
Wygonik, Erica 10 1 91%



5

Planning Board  (14 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Almeida, Joe 14 0 0 100%

Begala, Jane (resignation 3-21-2024) 4 1 0 N/A
Bowen, William 13 1 0 93%
Chellman, Rick 14 0 0 100%

Conard, Karen, City Manager 11 3 0 79%
Coviello, Anthony (Appointed 5-6-2024) 7 1 0 88%

Giuliano, Paul 12 2 0 86%
Hewitt, James 12 1 1 86%

Mahanna, Greg 9 5 0 64%
Moreau, Beth, Councilor 14 0 0 100%

Samonas, Andrew 12 2 0 86%

Portsmouth Energy Advisory Committee (10 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %

Blaisdell, Betsy 7 3 0 23%
Cameron, Tracey 6 4 0 15%

Charette, Kevin 8 2 0 40%
Cook, Kate, Councilor 6 4 0 15%

D'Antonio, Ben 7 3 0 23%
Lloyd, Herb 9 1 0 90%

Rooney, Tom 7 3 0 23%
Somssich, Peter 9 1 0 90%

Tabor, John, Councilor 10 0 0 100%



6

Portsmouth Housing Authority (11 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Bergeron, Kathleen 10 1 0 83%

Ferrini, Thomas 9 2 0 75%
Griffin, Michael 11 0 0 100%

Main, Daniel 11 0 0 100%
Pickering, Robin, Residential Rep, 11 0 0 100%

Rodenhizer, Kara Anne 8 3 0 67%

Portsmouth Housing Endowment Fund Advisory Board (1 meeting held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Berg, Steven 1 0 0 100%

Lukacz, Christine 1 0 0 100%
Mountjoy, Jeffrey 1 0 0 100%

Poubeau, Anne 0 1 0 0%
Welch, Craig 1 0 0 100%

Public Art Review Committee (12 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Dwyer, Chris 11 1 0 91%

Fineberg, Ellen 12 0 0 100%
Greenslade, Ernie (Jolined in March) 8 2 0 80%

Hartnett, Beth 8 4 0 66%
Lurie-Myerkopf, Robin (Joined in February) 7 4 0 64%

Meister, Jen 11 1 0 91%
Mullaney, Lennie 10 2 0 83%

Murphy, Alyssa 7 5 0 58%
Pearson, Nancy 12 0 0 100%

Witzling, Mara 11 1 0 91%



7

Recreation Board  (7 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Barrett, Elizabeth, School Board 4 3 0 13%

Blalock, Rich, Council Rep 6 1 0 60%
Bogardus, Robert (Resigned in May) 2 1 0 20%

Cali-Pitts, Jacqueline 7 0 0 100%
Chaudoin, Scott (Appointed in September) 3 0 0 100%

Court, Amy-Mae (Appointment in June) 4 0 0 100%
Diemer, Carl (Term expired in March) 2 0 0 100%

Duddy, Richard 7 0 0 100%
Krans, Lauren 7 0 0 100%

Lynch, Kathryn 5 2 0 25%
 Sirmaian, Kory 5 2 0 25%

Safe Water Advisory Group (4 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Amico, Andrea 4 0 0 100%

Barrett, Elizabeth 2 2 0 50%
Blalock, Rich (Councilor) 4 0 0 100%

DiPentima, Rich 4 0 0 100%
Hewitt, James 3 1 0 30%

Hillman, Katrie 4 0 0 100%
Lombardi, Vince (Councilor) 4 0 0 100%

McNamara, Kim 2 2 0 100%
McQuillen, Bill (Fire Chief) 2 2 0 50%

Meuse, David (State Representative) 3 1 0 30%
Schaider, Laurel 1 3 0 33%



8

Sustainability Committee (12 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Blasko, Jessica 12 0 0 100%

Brooks, Torey 5 6 1 71%
Cohen, Bert 12 0 0 100%

Denton, Josh (Councilor) 9 3 0 30%
Lyons, William 11 1 0 90%

Malley, Effie 9 3 0 30%
Sullivan, Chas 3 2 7 33%

Spear, Colleen (Joined in December) 1 0 0 100%
Ward, Maxson (Joined in December 0 0 1 0%

Trees & Public Greenery Committee (11 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Bagley, Patricia 11 0 0 100%
Chag, Deborah 11 0 0 100%

Dupere, A.J. 7 4 0 64%
Griffin, Michael 11 0 0 100%
Loughlin, Peter 11 0 0 100%
Souto, Dennis 10 1 0 83%

Trustees of Trust Fund (13 meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Levenson, Dana 13 0 0 100%

Watson, Thomas 13 0 0 100%
Weeks, Peter 13 0 0 100%



9

Zoning Board of Adjustment (17  meetings held) 2024 Attended Excused Unexcused Attendance %
Eldridge, Phyllis 14 3 0 82%

Mannle, Paul 16 0 1 94%
Margeson, Beth 14 3 0 82%
Mattson, Jeffrey 15 2 0 88%

Nies, Thomas (Appointment in March) 14 1 0 93%
Record, Jody 13 4 0 76%

Rheaume, David 15 2 0 88%
Rossi, Thomas 15 2 0 88%



 
 

 

PARKING and TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE  

ACTION SHEET 
8:30 A.M. – March 6, 2025 

City Hall Conference Room A 

 

PRESENT: Members:  Chairman Andrew Bagley, Public Works Director Peter Rice, 
Fire Chief William McQuillen, Deputy Police Chief Mike Maloney, 
Stephanie Casella Planning Department, Mark Syracusa, Erica Wygonik, 
Jane Mitchell-Pate, Mary Lou McElwain 

 

City Staff: City Engineer Eric Eby, Parking Director Ben Fletcher, Parking 
Foreman Mike Casad, Administrative Assistant Jefferson Lane 

 

ACTION ITEMS FOR CITY COUNCIL 
 

• None 

 

• Roll Call 

 

• Financial Report: Voted to accept and place on file Financial Report dated January 31st, 
2025. 

 

• Public Comment Session: There were two speakers: Tyler Garzo of 62 McKinley Road 
spoke regarding the Capital Improvement Plan. He urged the committee to find ways to de-
emphasize driving in future planning. Patrick Lavoie, owner of a barbershop at 295 
Maplewood Avenue, introduced his case to create a driveway to the building close to the 
intersection of Maplewood Avenue and Marsh Lane [Jackson Hill Street]. 

 

• 295 Maplewood Avenue, driveway permit request, by resident. Voted to recommend 
approval for construction of a driveway at the proposed location. 

 

• Bow Street, request to remove parking space to allow for monument for Royal 
Governor Benning Wentworth tomb, by Portsmouth Historical Society. Voted to place 
the item on file. 

 

• Police monthly accident report: Informational; no action required. 
 

• Outdoor dining season: Informational; no action required. 
 

 

Respectfully submitted by: Jefferson Lane 



 

 

PARKING and TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 

 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
CITY HALL, MUNICIPAL COMPLEX, 1 JUNKINS AVENUE 

Members of the public also had the opportunity to join the meeting via 
Zoom  

 

8:30 AM March 6th, 2025 
 

MINUTES 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

Councilor Andrew Bagley called the meeting to order at 8:30 AM.  
 

II. ATTENDANCE 
Members Present: 
Chairman Andrew Bagley 
Public Works Director Peter Rice 
Fire Chief William McQuillen 
Deputy Police Chief Mike Maloney 
Stephanie Casella, Planning Department  
Vice Chairwoman Erica Wygonik  
Jane Mitchell-Pate  
Mark Syracusa  
Mary Lou McElwain  
 
Members Absent:  
Dave Allen (alternate)  
 
City Staff Present: 
Ben Fletcher, Parking Director 
Mike Casad, Parking General Foreman 
Jefferson Lane, DPW Administrative Assistant II  
Eric Eby, City Engineer 
 

III. FINANCIAL REPORT 

[00:05:35] Public Works Director Peter Rice moved to accept the financial report dated January 
31st, 2025, seconded by Mark Syracusa. The motion passed unanimously.  
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (15 MINUTES) 
[00:06:01] There were two speakers: Tyler Garzo of 62 McKinley Road spoke regarding the 
Capital Improvement Plan, citing how 10% of the plan is car-specific. Garzo noted driving causes 
60% of Portsmouth’s greenhouse gas emissions, as well as how 10% of the population does not 
drive. He urged the committee to find ways to de-emphasize driving in future planning. 
 



 

 

Patrick Lavoie, owner of a barbershop at 295 Maplewood Avenue, introduced his case to create 
a driveway to the building close to the intersection of Maplewood Avenue and Marsh Lane 
[Jackson Hill Street].  
 

V. PRESENTATIONS 
There were no presentations.  
 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
(No public comment during Committee discussion without Committee approval.) 
 

There were no new items this month. 
 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 
A. [00:07:39] 295 Maplewood Avenue, driveway permit request, by resident. Vice Chairwoman 

Erica Wygonik motioned to place the item on file for discussion purposes, seconded by Mary 
Lou McElwain. There was discussion regarding the safety and logistics of a new driveway, 
primarily whether there’s ample room without street interference, as well as maintaining the 
sight distance of Maplewood Avenue from the intersection with Marsh Lane [Jackson Hill 
Street]. Mary Lou McElwain introduced an amendment to the original motion, moving to 
recommend approval for construction of a driveway at the proposed location. This motion 
was seconded by Jane Mitchell-Pate. Peter Rice introduced a friendly amendment to the 
motion, citing consideration of greenery near the intersection as a visual cue for motorists, 
seconded by Erica Wygonik. Following discussion, Rice rescinded his friendly amendment. 
Chairman Bagley requested a roll call vote. The motion passed 7-2, with Fire Chief Bill 
McQuillen and Public Works Director Peter Rice voting against the motion. 
 

B. [00:41:40] Bow Street, request to remove parking space to allow for monument for Royal 
Governor Benning Wentworth tomb, by Portsmouth Historical Society. Peter Rice moved to 
place the item on file, seconded by Erica Wygonik. The motion passed unanimously. 

 

VIII. INFORMATIONAL 
A. [00:46:43] Police monthly accident report 
B. [00:49:53] Outdoor dining season   

 

IX. MISCELLANEOUS 

[00:50:10] Chairman Bagley circled back on the Broad Street traffic calming measures from 
February’s meeting, citing that previously mentioned methods were out of the purview for 
PTS. Bagley sought input from Chief McQuillen and Deputy Chief Maloney on the idea of 
turning Broad Street into a dead end, and the impact that could have on emergency 
operations. Jane Mitchell-Pate inquired about parking access to doors on Bow Street 
belonging to St. John’s Episcopal Church. Mary Lou McElwain asked for any updates regarding 
a committee item from 2024 regarding the installation of a stop sign on Marston Avenue at 
South Street. Jane Mitchell-Pate asked about the need for a site visit to Broad Street 
regarding traffic calming. 

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 

[00:55:20] Erica Wygonik moved to adjourn, seconded by Mary Lou McElwain. The motion 



 

 

passed unanimously. Chairman Bagley adjourned the meeting at 9:20 AM. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
Jefferson Lane 
Administrative Assistant II, Department of Public Works  



Gift and Donation Submission Form 

Donations received by the City of Portsmouth must be accepted by the City Council. Please 

complete this form and submit it to the City Manager for inclusion on an upcoming agenda. 

 

Date: 

Department/ 

Contact Person:   

      Donation Amount:   

 

Are Funds to be directed to a particular department, program or fund? – If yes, please 

provide detail below: 

  

 

 

       Is there a particular purpose intended with this donation: 

Yes, the purpose of this donation is to support the acquisition and installation of 

a memorial for Dinah Chase Whipple at North Cemetery. 

 
 

 Other Information/Special Conditions: 

This donation will be bundled with additional donations already received for the 

acquisition of the memorial. 

 
 

Donor Information 

First & Last Name:  

Business Name: 

Address*: 

Phone*: 

      Email*: 

 

Please note that 

gifts/donations to individual employees with a value of $100 or more are not permitted. 

Information with an asterisk (*) indicates it will not be publicly distributed. 

February 25, 2025 

Suzanne Woodland, Deputy City Manager/Regulatory 
Counsel and Susan Sterry, Cemetery Committee Co-Chair 

$1,000 

Yes, this donation will be restricted for the purpose described below. 

  

Appledore Marine Engineering LLC acting through the (The 
Webs Foundation)  Attn: Vanessa Swasey Office Manager 

600 State Street, Suite E, Portsmouth NH 

 

 


	CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 03-17-2025
	Council Agenda 03-17-2025

	ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES - 02-18-2025
	City Council Minutes - 02-18-2025

	RECOGNITIONS & VOLUNTEER COMMITTEE REPORTS
	Public Art Review Committee (PARC) - 2024 Annual Report

	PUBLIC HEARINGS & VOTE ON ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS
	Third & Final Reading Zoning Ordinance - Chapter 10 - Accessory Uses to Permitted Residential Uses
	Third & Final Reading Zoning Ordinance - Chapter 10 - Removal of 185 Orchard Street - Historic District Overlay

	CITY MANAGER'S ITEMS WHICH REQUIRE ACTION
	City Manager's Comments
	Easement & License for Public Deck Access Located at 99 Bow Street
	Request for Public Hearing Regarding Fernald Easement Financing
	Third Extension of Temporary Construction License for EightKph, LLC at 70 Maplewood Avenue
	2025 Seacoast Eat Local Farmers' Market License
	Amendment to Lease with the Players' Ring

	CONSENT AGENDA
	Eiger Insurance Services - Projecting Sign at 28 Deer Street
	Fair Winds Home LLC - Projecting Sign - 19 Market Street
	Letter from Cystic Fibrosis Foundation requesting to hold Cycle for Life Event
	Letter from PMAC requesting to hold small parade from African Burying Ground to Vaughn Mall
	Letter from Red Bull Distribution Company requesting to hold charitable event at Peirce Island
	Letter from Out of the Darkness requesting to hold walk at Peirce Island
	Letter from NH Sons of the American Revolution to hold ceremony unveiling markers for Patriots
	Letter requesting to hold the Portsmouth Halloween Parade

	PRESENTATIONS & WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS
	Email Correspondence
	Request from Chris Adams for a License Agreement

	MAYOR McEACHERN
	Appointments to be Considered - Mandela Pruett - Arts & Cultural Commission
	Appointments to be Considered - Kara Anne Rodenhizer - PHA
	Resignation - Eva Boice
	Boards, Commissions & Committees 2024 Attendance Records

	CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS
	Councilor Bagley - PTS Action Sheet & Minutes - March 6, 2025

	APPROVAL OF GRANTS/DONATIONS
	Acceptance of Donation for a memorial for Dinah Chase Whipple at North Cemetery




